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1 Please find enclosed for registration under the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013
for American Income Life Insurance Company (AILIC) for the year ended
31 December 2020:

1.1 AILIC New Zealand Branch Financial Statements and Audit Report, prepared
in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

1.2 AILIC Group Financial Statements and Audit report, prepared in accordance
with Statutory Accounting Principles issued by the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners (US SAP); and

1.3 the Appointed Actuary’s reports prepared in accordance with section 78 of the
Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 in relation to the Group and
Branch Financial Statements above.

2 AILIC gives notice to the Registrar of Companies of its reliance on the enclosed
Financial Markets Conduct (Overseas Registered Banks and Licensed Insurers)
Exemption Notice 2020, which exempts AILIC from:

2.1 sections 455(1}(c), 461B, 461D, and 461G of the FMCA; and

2.2 sections 460 and 460 of the FMCA to the extent that those sections require the
exempt issuer to ensure that its financial statements, or group financial
statements, comply with generally accepted accounting practice,

provided that inter alia, it files Group Financial statements that have been prepared
and audited in accordance with US SAP.

3 Please charge the registration fee for the financial statements to our account
(number 1001971). The reference number you should use is 041422045,

Chapman Tripp 23 Albert Street www.chapmantripp.com
T +64 9357 9000 PO Box 2206, Auckland 1140 Auckland, Wellington,
F +549357 9099 New Zealand Christchurch
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Deloitte.

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder of American Income Life Insurance Company — New Zealand Branch

Opinion We have audited the financial staternents of American Income Life Insurance Company — New Zealand Branch
{the ‘Branch’), which cornprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2029, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of movements in the home office account and statement of cash fiows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accampanying financial statements, on pages 6 to 26, present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Branch as at 31 December 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ("NZ
IFRS") and International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS').

Basis for opinion We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs’) and International
Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) {'ISAs {NZ)'). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiol Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 2 basis for our
opinion,

We are independent of the Branch in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 International Code of
Ethics for Assurance Practitioners {including International Independence Standards) (New Zealand) issued by the
New Zealand Auditing and Assurance $tandards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Dur firm carries out other assignments for the Branch in the area of other assurance over solvency returns. These
services have not impaired our independence as auditor of the Branch. In addition to this, partners and
employees of our firm deal with the Branch on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of
the business of the Branch. The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the Branch.

Emphasis of matter - branch The Branch is part of American Income Life Insurance Company Limited {'the Company’). As described in Note 16,
the assets of the Branch, other than those held in custodial fund, are legally available for the satisfaction of debts
of the entire company, not sofely those appearing on the accompanying balance sheet and its debts may result in
claims against assets not appearing thereon, Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key audit matters Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whote, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Liability for future policy benefits —Underlying assumptions

The net reserve for future policy benefits relating to Life insurance contract

liabilities is a key audit matter because of the judgment required in making
the estimate. Specific actuarial experience is required to evaluate complex
and judgmentat actuarial methodologies and assumptions.

As described in Note 15 to the financial statements, management sets
assumptions for mariality, morbidity, rates of discontinuance, in (1)
estimating a liability for insurance contracts that will be incurred in the
future {“policy liabilities”) and {2} determining the discount rate used to
calculate the present value of future policy benefits payable.

Assumptions are deterrmined based upon published information, studies
and analysis of Branch specific experience, adjusted for changes in
exposure and other relevant factors.

Given the inherent uncertainty of future assumptions, the development of
such assumptions involve especiatly subjective judgment.

The estimate of the liability for future policy benefits is a key input inte the
branch's solvency calculation for measuring compliance with its licanse
conditions and Is sensitive to ¢changes in interest rates.

Our audit procedures related to management’s judgments regarding the
assumptions used in the development of the liability for future policy
benefits included the following, among others:

e We tested the relevant controls over the valuation of the liability
for future policy benefits.

+  We performed testing on the completeness and accuracy of the
underlying data used ins the development of the assumptions as
well as in the determination of the liability for future policy
benefits.

s We evaluated management’s selected actuarial assumptions.

*  With the assistance of our actuarial specialists, we evaluated
management's judgments regarding the assumptions used in the
devefopment of future policy benefits payable including the
appropriateness of the valuation methdodoligy.

+  We evaluated whether the assumptions used were consistent with
evidence obtained in other areas of the audit.

¢ We considered the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial

statements in relation to the above.

Other information

Directors’ responsibilities for the
financial statements

Auditer’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements

Restriction on use

Wentte Lowided

Mike Hoshek, Partner

for Deloitte Limited
Christchurch, New Zealand
30 April 2021
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The directors are responsible on behalf of the Branch for the other information. The other information comprises
the information in the Annual Report that accompanies the financial statements and the audit report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and consider whether it is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
so, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsihle on behalf of the Branch for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with NZ IFRS and IFRS, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free frorn material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

tn preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible on behalf of the Branch for assessing the
Branch’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going cancern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Branch or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance js a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs and 15As {NZ} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to infiuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of cur responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the External
Reporting Board's website at:

htips://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities/audit-report-2

This description forms part of ocur auditor’s report.

This report is made solely to the Branch’s shareholders, as a body. Our audit has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Branch’s shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Branch's shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.
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Financial Statements
As of and for the year ended 31 December 2020
APPROVAL BY DIRECTORS

Thae directors are pleased to present the ﬁnahcial statements of American Income Life Insurance Company - New
Zealand Branch as of and for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The shareholders of the Company have exercised their rights under Section 211(3) of the Companies Act 1993 and

unanimously agreed that the annual report need not company with any of the Sections {a} and (e) to (i) of Section
211(1) and of Section 211(2) of the Act.

gldle P

{/ 3
Diractor Director
Michael Shane Henrie James Matthew Darden

For and on behalf of the Directors

Date: 30 April 2021



AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

1. GENERAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
General Information - The reporting entity is American Income Life Insurance Company - New Zealand
Branch (the “Branch”). American Income Life Insurance Company (the "Company”) is registered under the
Companies Act 1993,

Effective 31 July 2013, the Company established a statutory fund in accordance with the Insurance
(Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (“IPSA-2010"). Note 16 to the financial statements provides further
information in relation to the Statutory Fund. The Company was granted a full license by the Reserve
Bank of New Zealand (RBNZ) under IPSA-2010 on 23 August 2013. The life insurance operations of the
Branch are conducted as required by the IPSA - 2010 and are reported in aggregate in the statement of
comprehensive income, balance sheet, statement of cash flows and statement of movements in the home
office account of the Branch. The life insurance operations of the Branch comprise the selling and
administration of life insurance contracts. All contracts are non-investment linked business. All business
written by the Branch is non-participating and all profits and losses are allocated to the statutory fund.

Life insurance contracts involve the acceptance of significant insurance risk. Insurance contracts include
those where the insured benefit is payable on the occurrence of a specified event such as death, injury or
disability caused by accident or illness.

The principal place of business is American Income Life Insurance Company, 1200 Wooded Acres, Waco,
Texas, United States of America. The contact address for the Branch is c/o AIL New Zealand Limited (an
independently owned company and independent contractor), AIL House, 2165 Great North Road,
Avondale, Auckland, New Zealand.

The effects of the COVID-18 pandemic, and international responses, are wide-ranging, costly, disruptive
and rapidly changing. Despite these challenges, the Branch continues to effectively conduct business
operations as it monitors the impact of the pandemic on underwriting results, solvency requirements,
agency force and policyholders. While sales for the Branch were initially hindered after the onset of the
COVID-19 lockdown, our agents were able to transition to a virtual work environment in order to
supplement traditional in person sales during the second half of the year. The Branch had no death claims
in 2020 where COVID-19 was listed as the cause of death.

Basis of Preparation - The financial statements presented are those solely for the Branch and are
prepared on the basis of historical costs except for certain assets and liabilities as noted. The financial
statements comprise statements of the following: significant accounting policies, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of movements in the home office account, balance sheet, statement of
cash flows, as well as notes to these statements contained on pages 7 to 27. As stated in Note 16, the
assets held in the Custodial Fund are only available to meet the liabilities of American Income Life
Insurance Company - New Zealand Branch. Assets held in Other Account are legally available for the
satisfaction of debts of the American Income Life Insurance Company, not solely those appearing on the
balance sheet of the Branch and its debts may result in claims against assets not appearing thereon.

Statement of Compliance - The Branch is a profit-oriented entity and has applied all applicable
standards for profit-oriented entities.

The Branch is an FMC reporting entity under the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013. These financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Financial Markets Conduct
Act 2013.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
in New Zealand (NZ GAAP). They comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial
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Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards as appropriate for
profit-oriented entities. The financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Presentation and Functional Currency of the Branch - These financial statements have been
prepared in New Zealand dollars, which is the functional currency of the branch.

Overview of Insurance Risk - The financial assets and liabilities are subject to market and insurance risk
and other changes of experience assumptions that may have a material effect on NZ |FRS basis profit or
loss and equity. Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument, or
liability of insurance contracts will vary because of changes in market prices. Market risk involves four
types of risk:

Credit Risk - is the risk that a counter-party will default on its contractual agreement exposing the Branch
to potential financial loss. The Branch manages this risk in accordance with its investment management
policies.

Currency Risk - is the risk of loss resulting from changes in exchange rate when applied to assets and
liabilities or future transactions denominated in a currency that is not the Branch’s functional currency. The
Branch sets limits for the management of currency risk arising from the Branch's investments based on
prudent international asset management practice.

Interest Rate Risk - is the risk that the value or future value of cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in interest rates. The Branch manages interest rate risk arising from its
interest bearing investments in accordance with Branch policies.

Other Price Risk - is the risk of loss resulting from the decline in prices of equity securities or other assets.
The price risk is managed by diversification of the investment portfolio.

Policyholder liabilities and reserves are subject to the effects of changes in experience, or expected future
experience, such as for mortality and rates of discontinuance.

Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Effective - NZ IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts” is effective for
balance dates beginning 1 January 2023. The standard replaces NZ IFRS 4 "[nsurance Contracts”, NZ
IFRS 17 requires entities to identify portfolios of insurance contracts which are subject to similar risk and
managed together. Each portfolio, at minimum shall be divided into three groups, a group of contracts that
are onerous at initial recognition, a group of contracts that at initial recognition have no significant
possibility of becoming onerous, and a group of the remaining contracts in the portfolio. The standard
measures insurance contracts either under the general model or a simplified version of this called the
Premium Allocation Approach. An entity shall apply the standard retrospectively unless impracticable, in
which case entities have the option of using either the modified retrospective approach or the fair value
approach. Management has conducted a prefiminary analysis regarding the application of this new
standard to the products in its branch operations, considering items such as application of the general
model and the expected likelihood of any onerous contracts at initial recognition. This effort is ongoing.
Due to the nature of the standard, the impact o the financial statements is expected to be significant.

Adoption of New and Revised Standards and Interpretations - No new material standards were
adopted during the year ended 31 December 2020.

2, PARTICULAR ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Recognition of Premium Income and Policy Expenses - Premiums on life and accident and health
policies are recognised as revenues when received and due.

Policy acquisition costs are the fixed and variable costs of acquiring new business, including
commission. Policy maintenance costs include all operating and management costs other than
acquisition and investment management costs.

All expenses that are not directly attributable to the acquisition of life insurance contracts are
classified as maintenance expenses.
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b)

c)

d)

e)

Investments - The government and other debt securities are stated at fair values, which were
obtained from third party pricing services, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current Tax - The tax currently payable is calculated on the basis that the Branch is a non-resident
with no fixed establishment in New Zealand. As such, the Branch is subject to income tax as a non-
resident life insurer; general insurance premiums are subject to the non-resident insurer regime; and
interest income is subject to non-resident withholding tax or Approved lssuer Levy. Taxable profit
differs from profit reported in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or expenses that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
Further, different tax rates apply under the non-resident insurer regime and to interest income for non-
residents. The Branch's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred Tax - Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Financial Instruments - Assets and liabilities of the Branch are primarily financial instruments and
are recognised in the Balance Sheet.

The Branch has determined that cash and bonds in the custodial account are the assets held in
relation to insurance contracts for backing insurance contract liabilities. The branch has provided
additional protection for its New Zealand policy holders by ring-fencing a significant proportion of its
financial assets in a trust structure, sufficient to cover its solvency liabilities in New Zealand.

The accounting policies applying to financial assets held to back life insurance activities are:

Financial assets are stated at fair value, with any resulting gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. All
purchases or sales of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss that require delivery
within the timeframe established by regulation or market convention (“regular way” purchase and
sales) are recognised at trade date, which is the date the Company commits to purchase or sell the
assets,

Loan and deposits are recognised at settlement date, which is the date that the assets are delivered
or received.

Short term deposits and cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost and are recorded
using the effective interest method, with revenue recognised on an effective yield basis, The effective
interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is that rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Accrued investment income and receivables from affiliates that do not back insurance contract
liabilities are measured at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses (ECL).
Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate. Receivables from affiliates
primarily represent claw back commission, advances to agents and interest accrued on these
amounis,

Trade and Other Liabilities - Trade payables and other liabilities are recognised when the entity
becomes obliged to make future payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services and are
measured at amortized cost.
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f)

g)

h)

Statement of Cash Flows - The statement of cash flows has been prepared using the direct
approach disclosed below,

Operating activities are the principal revenue producing activities of the Branch and other activities
that are not investing or financing activities.

Investing activities are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not
included in cash and cash equivalents.

Financing activities are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed
equity and borrowings of the Branch.

Cash and cash equivalents reflect the balance of cash and liquid assets used in the day-to-day cash
management.

Impairment of Financial Assets - Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are not subject
to impairment testing.

The amount of ECLs for financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Branch applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs for receivables from affiliates.
Therefore, the branch does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting dates. Where considered necessary, an ECL has been
established and the asset is written down to its estimated recoverable amount.

The Branch applies a general approach in calculating ECLs for accrued investment income. Using the
general approach, if the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Branch is required to measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to twelve months of ECL.

Policy Liabilities - Policy liabilities consist of life insurance contract liabilities.

Life Insurance Contract Liabilities - The value of life insurance contract liabilities is calculated using
the Margin on Services {(MoS) methodology in accordance with New Zealand Society of Actuaries
Professional Standard 20, Determination of Life Insurance Policy Liabilities (PS20). Under this
methodology, planned profit margins and an estimate of future liabilities are calculated separately for
each related product group using best estimate assumptions at each reporting date, and acquisition
costs are deferred over the life of the contract. Profit margins are released over each reporting period
in line with the services that have been provided. The balance of the planned profits is deferred by
including them in the value of policy liabilities. Further details of the actuarial assumptions used in
these calculations are set outin Note 15,

MoS profit can be analysed into the following categories:

(i) Planned Margins of Revenues over Expenses - At the time of writing a policy and at each balance
date, best estimate assumptions are used to determine all expected future payments and
premiums. Where actual experience replicates best estimate assumptions, the expected profit
margin will be released to profit over the life of the policy.

(i) The Difference Between Actual and Assumed Experience - Experience profits/{losses) are
realized where actual experience differs from best estimate assumptions. Instances giving rise to
experience profits/(losses) include variations in claims, expenses, mortality, discontinuance and
investment returns. For example, an experience profit will emerge when the expenses of
maintaining all inforce business in a year are lower than the best estimate assumption in respect
of those expenses.

(ii) Changes to Underlying Assumptions - The financial statement effect of all changes to underlying
assumptions used for measuring policy liabilities are reviewed each year, Where the review leads
to a change in assumptions, the change is deemed to have occurred from the end of the year,
except for changes in discount rates which are recognised in the year that the rates are changed.
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The financial effect of all other changes to the assumptions underlying the measurement of policy
liabilities made during the reporting period Is recognised in profit or loss over the future reporting
periods during which services are provided to policyholders.

(iv) Loss Recognition on Groups of Related Products - If based on best estimate assumptions, writlen
business for a group of related products is expected to be unprofitable, the total expected loss for
that related product group is recognised in profit or loss immediately. When loss-making business
becomes profitable, it is necessary to reverse previously recognised losses.

(v} Investment Earnings on Assets in Excess of Policy Liabifities - Profits are generated from
investment assets, which are in excess of those required to meet policy liabilities. Investment
earnings are directly influenced by market conditions and as such this component of MoS profit
will vary from year to year.

3. SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES, AND ASSUMPTIONS
In the application of NZ IFRS management is reguired to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgments, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the perlod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revisicn and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
pericds.

Significant judgments, estimates and assumptions made by management in the preparation of these
financial statements are outlined below:

a) Estimation of Insurance Contract Liabilities - Insurance contract liabilities for life insurance
contracts are computed using statistical or mathematical methods. The computations are made by
suitably qualified personnel on the basis of recognised actuarial methods, with due regard to relevant
actuarial principles. The methodology takes into account the risks and uncertainties of the particular
classes of life insurance business written. Deferred policy acquisition costs are connected with the
measurement basis of life insurance liabilities and are equally sensitive to the factors that are
considered in the liability measurement.

The key factors that affect the estimation of these liabilities and related assets are:

+ Mortality and morbidity experience on life insurance products, including enhancements to
policyholder benefits;

+ Discontinuance experience, which affects the Branch's ability to recover the cost of acquiring new
business over the lives of the contracts;

*  The cost of providing benefits and administering these insurance contracts;

* The discount rate applied to calculate the present value of future benefits;

in addition, factors such as regulation, inflation, interest rates, taxes, investment market conditions
and general economic conditions affect the level of these liabilities. Refer to Note 15 for disclosure of
assumptions.

b) Policy and Contract Claims - Policy and contract claims include provisions for reported claims and
claims incurred but not reported. The provision for claims incurred but not reported is estimated based
on the Branch’s experience,

Since this liability is based on estimates, the ultimate settlement of losses may vary from the amounts

included in the financial statements. Although it is not possible to measure the degree of variability
inherent in such estimates, the Branch believes the liability for claims is reasonable.
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AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
INCOME:
Premiums (Note 1) 5 24,812,276 $ 23,448,482
Interest income on investments (Note 2) 3,281,784 2,591,212
Revaluation of debt securities 1,826,797 184,587
Other interest 500,586 777,029
30,421,443 27,001,310
EXPENDITURE:
Claims (Note 3) 4,981,052 4,985,902
Change in liability for future policy benefits {Note 15) 2,537,931 7,784,996
Commissions (Note 4) 7,179,490 7,358,184
Management expenses (Note 5) 5,934,581 5,628,397
20,633,054 25,757,479
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9,788,389 1,243,831
TAXATION (Note 13) 217,427 231,426
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION ATTRIBUTABLE TO
HEAD QOFFICE (Note 6) $ 9,570,962 § 1,012,405
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME § 9,570,962 § 1,012,405

The Statements of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements form part of, and should
be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN THE HOME OFFICE ACCOUNT
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
BALANCE — Beginning of the year $ 89,612,697 $ 58,172,897
Contributions from the home office:
General advances (Note 9) received / (made) 26,386,544 26,745,833
Expenses paid on behalf of the Branch (Note 9) 3,397,681 3,681,563

29,784,225 30,427,396

Profit after tax 9,570,962 1,012,405
Total comprehensive income 9,570,962 1,012,405
BALANCE -— End of the year $128,967,884 § 89,612,697

The Statements of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements form part of, and should
be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

BALANCE SHEET
As of 31 December 2020

ASSETS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
INVESTMENTS (Note 8)

POLICY LOANS

OUTSTANDING PREMIUMS
ACCRUED INVESTMENT INCOME
RECEIVABLE FROM AFFILIATES
PREPAYMENTS

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND HOME OFFICE ACCOUNT

POLICY AND CONTRACT CLAIMS
UNEARNED PREMIUMS
TRADE AND OTHER LIABILITIES
NET RESERVE FOR FUTURE POLICY BENEFITS (Note 15)
CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (Note 13}
Total liabilities
ADVANCES FROM HOME OFFICE (Note 9)
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
Total home office account

TOTAL

2020

$ 15,372,270
135,112,177
4,122,147
231,013
1,252,736
6,155,655
262

2019

$ 12,740,707
94,545,680
3,796,727
247,826
997,826
7,820,090
301

$162,246,160

$120,149,157

$ 1477730 $§ 1,578,436
54,012 42,329
1,588,277 1,302,510
29,753,143 27,215,212
405,114 397,973
33,278,276 30,536,460
82,119,022 52,334,796
46,848,862 37,277,901
128,867,884 89,612,697

$162,246,160

$120,149,157

The Statements of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements form part of, and should

be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTWVITIES:
Premiums and other considerations received from policyholders
Interest income
Other interest
Payment of claims
Payments of taxes
Payments of commissions
{Payments)/Receipts to suppliers, agents etc.

Net cash provided by operating activities (Note 12)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Cash paid for long term investments

Net cash (used) in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - Advances provided by / (repaid
to) related parties

Net cash provided from / (used in} financing activities
NET (DECREASE)INCREASE IN CASH ON HAND
CASH ON HAND — Beginning of year

CASH ON HAND — End of year

2020

2019

$ 24,503,670 $ 23,071,548

4,049,033 2,772,687
500,586 777,029
(5,070,078)  (4,926,440)
(210,286)  (206,349)
(5,514,954)  (6,475,239)
(1,552,316)  (974,723)
16,705,655 14,038,513

(39,761,861)

(36,799,889}

(39,761,861)

(36,799,889)

25,687,769 26,119,205
25,687,769 26,119,295

2,631,563 3,357,918
12,740,707 9,382,788

$ 15,372,270 $ 12,740,707

The Statements of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements form part of, and should

be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

1. PREMIUMS

2020 2018
Individual life $ 20212573 § 19,165,776
Accident and health 4,599,703 4,282,706

§ 24812276 § 23,448,482

2, INTEREST INCOME ON INVESTMENTS

2020 2019
Government securities $ 1,700,143 % 1,278,261
Other debt securities 1,581,641 1,312,951

$ 3281784 § 2591212

3. CLAIMS

2020 2019
Individual life $ 4021477 § 3,798,817
Accident and heailth 959,575 1,187,085

$ 4981052 § 4985902

4, COMMISSIONS {POLICY ACQUISITION EXPENSES)

2020 2019
In respect of new policies:
Individual iife - First Year $§ 3,878,590 § 4,124,544
Individual life - Renewal 2,314,647 2,276,794
Accident and health - First Year 533,746 545,294
Accident and health - Renewal 452 507 411,552

$ 7179490 § 7,358,184
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AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

5. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

2020 2019

Home office charges:

General expenses $ 1475680 § 1,629,065
Salaries 1,922,001 2,062,498
General office expenses 1,514,396 1,144,493
Remuneration for services provided:

Audit and assurance fees paid to Deloiite 262,054 146,954
Taxation Services - Other firms 65,191 45,792
Other expenses 671,751 590,214
Investment expenses 23,508 19,381

$ 5934581 $§ 5,628,397

6. PROFIT AFTER TAX

The profit for the year has arisen as follows:

2020 2019
Planned margins 5 3,277,240 § 2,694,140
Actual and assumed experience 4,405,770 3,319,918
Basis change® (2,012,164) (7,155,118)
Investment earnings on assets in excess of policy liabilities 3,900,116 2,153,465

$ 9570962 § 1,012,405

* The basis change is the impact of changes 1o the discount rates used in valuation of policy liabilities.

7. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There are no commitments for capital expenditure entered into at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

8. INVESTMENTS

2020 2019
Bonds
Governments $ 73,520,913 § 38,366,927
Corporates 61,591,264 56,178,753
Total Bonds $ 135112177 $ 94,545,680

These securities mature from 2021 to 2050 and carry an effective yield of approximately 2.87% (2019 - 3.38%).
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AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

9.

10.

11.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS TO DISCLOSE CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED

American Income Life Insurance Company incurs expenses for the Branch at the Home Office in Waco, Texas.
Those expenses, as well as additional start-up costs and contributions from Home Office to comply with
regulatory solvency capifal requirements are shown as advances from the Home Office to the Branch.
Additionally, there are no members of management located at the branch in New Zealand, therefore the Home
Office bears the cost of management. During 2020, decreases in interest rates resulted in additional capital
contributions related to the license condition of the Branch, While the original license condition was modified in
September 2020, the rate decreases themselves resulied in the increased capital contribution as opposed to
the changes made to the original license parameters. The advance payable to the Home Office as at 31
December 2020 was $82,119,022 (2019: $52,334,796). The total value of these expenses for the year were
$3,397,681 (2019: $3,681,563) and a general advance was received (paid) during the year of $26,386,544
(2019: $26,745,833),

LOANS TO DIRECTORS OR EMPLOYEES

None (2019: None)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The financial condition and operating results of the Branch are affected by a number of financial and non-
financial risks. Financial risks include interest rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. Non-financial risks include
insurance risks.

The Branch's objective is to prudently manage these risks.

Financial risks are managed via a conservative investment management strategy, with assets concentrated in
liquid, investment grade bonds. The asset mix includes medium-term investments in government securities,
aimed at immunizing the policy fiabilities against interest rate fluctuations.

Insurance risks are managed via prudent underwriting of new business applications from prospective
policyholders and via thorough selection of appropriate sales staff to act as the Branch's intermediaries.

Insurance Risks - Terms and conditions that affect the timing of cash-flows are as follows:

The Branch's products are predominantly long-term policies providing death and disablement benefits. The
policy liabilities are calculated on the basis that the assumed rate of investment returns are able to be realized
on policy reserves and on net cash-flows in future. If these returns are not achieved then the projected
surpluses will be lower than expected.

The Branch's products provide death and disablement benefits that are significantly in excess of the policy
liabilities. Consequently if claim levels are higher than expected then the projected surpluses wiil be lower than
expected.

The Branch’s products provide surrender values on product cancellation, and if more clients surrender than
expected then the projected cash out-flows will be accelerated.

The policy liabilities are based on the assumption that policies are able to be maintained for a certain level of
administration costs. If these costs are exceeded there will be a resulting reduction in emerging profits.

The Branch does not write any group business, where there could be concentrations of lives insured in one
work-place.

The total individual Life and Accident and Hospital claims paid in 2020 for claims incurred before 2020 is
$884,061 which is lower by $677,346 compared to claim liabilities estimate of $1,561,407 provided in 2019,

Insurance risk can be quantified by showing the sensitivity of policy liabilities and future profit margins to
changes in the main assumptions that affect insurance business risks. The table below shows the impact of
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variations to assumptions concerning discount rates, the major types of claims, policy discontinuances and
administration costs.

2020
Life {Accident &
Hospital
Life Indemnity)
Policy Policy
Assumption variation Liabilities Margins Liabilities Margins
Increase (Decrease)
Discount rate 1% higher $ (12,271,778) %  (2,010,176) (401,660) %  (457,694)
Discount rate 1% lower 17,541,909 2,421,542 653,127 557,259
Deaths and disablements 10% higher (6,577,968) (2,333,367)
Deaths and disablements 10% lower 7,032,534 2,334,321
Annual surrenders 10% higher 1,976,856 95,246
Annual surrenders 10% lower (2,383,813) (162,603)
Administration costs 10% higher {2,352,970) (440,096)
Administration costs 10% lower 2,352,970 440,096
2019
Life (Accident &
Hospital
Life Indemnity)
Policy Policy
Assumption variation Liahilities Margins Liahilities Margins
Increase (Decrease)

Discount rate 1% higher $ (11,389,834} % (2,068,216) $ {338,510} $  (413,287)
Discount rate 1% lower 16,355,184 2,492,753 544,744 502,491
Deaths and disablements 10% higher (5,929,193) (2,021,610)
Deaths and disablements 10% lower 6,327,474 2,022 444
Annual surrenders 10% higher 1,860,399 67,092
Annuat surrenders 10% lower (2,268,594) (121,102)
Administration costs 10% higher (2,100,284) (363,413)
Administration costs 10% lower 2,100,284 363,413

Interest Rate Risk - Invested assets are subject to the customary risks of defaults, downgrades, and changes
in market values. Factors that may affect these risks include interest rate levels, financial market performance,
and general economic conditions. Significant increases in interest rates could cause a material temporary
decline in the fair value of the fixed invesiment portfolio, refiecting unrealized fair value losses. This risk is
mitigated by the Branch's operating strategy to generally hold investments to maturity recognizing the long-
term nature of the life policy reserve liabilities supported by investments, The high credit quality of investments
held, which are all NZ Government direct obligations and bonds of NZ agencies, municipals and corporates
(refer o Note 8), greatly diminishes the need to liquidate investments prior to maturity.

The following table illustrates the market risk sensitivity of our interest-rate sensitive fixed-maturity portfolio at
31 December 2020 and 20189. This table measures the effect of a change in interest rates on the profit or loss
and equity of the Branch. The data measures the effect on profit or loss and equity arising from an immediate
and sustained change in interest rates in increments of 100 basis points.

18




AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
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Increase {Decrease) in
Profit and Equity

For the Year
2020 2019
Change in interest rate (bps):
-200 $ 19,052,639 $§ 9,199,054
-100 8,931,236 4,448,950
0
+100 (7,938,313) (4.171,717)
+200 (15,040,589) {8,087,845)

Credit Risk - The Branch's major categories of asset comprise the following:

Investments in government securities, corporate bonds, and cash and cash equivalents total $150.5 million as
of 31 December 2020 (2019 - $107.3 million).

Receivables from affiliates of $6.2 million (2019 - $7.8 million) represent unexpensed agent commissions,
which have been purchased by an affiliated party and have not been settled. The recoverability of unexpensed
commissions depends on the continuation of the policies on which the commissions have been accrued. The
recoverability of clawback amounts will be affected by whether the agent continues to write new business with
the Branch, and whether the agent has assets that are able to contribute to any commission recovery.

Qutstanding premiums and receivables from affiliates are relatively illiquid assets and are subject to a degree
of credit risk. The risk is monitored by management for collectability and an expected credit loss is established
as necessary.

Accrued investment income of $1.3 million (2019 - $1.0 million) represents interest income earned on the
investment portfolio but not yet received as of the balance sheet date. This asset category is subject fo a
degree of credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Branch continually monitors the economic and credit status of each of its bond heldings and analyzes each
issuer’s ability to continue meeting its contractual debt abligations. Factors taken into consideration include:

« An actual or expected significant detericration in the issuer’s credit rating

»  Existing or projected changes to the business, economic, financial, or regulatory environment under which
the issuer operates that could adversely impact its ability to meet its debt obligations

»  Actual or projected deterioration in operating resuits that could significantly impact the issuer's cash flows
and thus, its ability fo meet debt obligations

= Changes to, or removal of, financial guarantees from a third-party guarantor

»  Actual or projected deterioration in any underlying collateral

« News and information, either released by the issuer or otherwise reported by the media or securities
analysts who monitor the issuer, that indicate the issuer is unlikely to pay its creditors on time or in full

When, based upon the assessments above, it is determined that a contractual interest payment will not be

received or is not expected to be received, the accrued interest receivable will be reversed. Since all of the
bonds held by the Branch are cobligated to pay interest either semi-annually or quarterly, the collectability of
such interest is determinable at regular intervals throughout the year.

The Branch does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counter-party or any group of
counter-parties having simitar characteristics,

Liquidity Risk - The Branch maintains adequate cash and short-term investments on an ongoing basis to

meet anticipated liquidity needs. Long term securities are NZ government and corporate securities which are
readily marketable in the event of unforeseen extraordinary liquidity needs,
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The Branch's government long-term securities mature from 2021 through 2050,

The average term of the Branch'’s liabilities for notified and unnotified claims, unearned premiums, premium
taxes, and trade liabilities, totalling $3.1 million, is less than 12 months.

The average term of the Branch’'s policy liabilities is in excess of five years, Annual claim payments are
expected to exceed $1 million per year, however these claims are expected to be met out of projected future
net cash-flows, and policy liabilities are projected to increase rather than reduce over the next five years.

Fair Values - The Branch measures the fair value of its financial assets based on a hierarchy of three levels
that indicate the quality of the fair value measurements as described below:

*Level 1 - fair values are based on guoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Branch has the ability to access as of the measurement date.,

+Level 2 - fair values are based on inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or [iabilities in markets that are not
active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, or inputs that can
otherwise be corroborated by chservable market data.

*Level 3 - fair values are based on inputs that are considered unobservable where there is little, if any,
market activity for the asset or liability as of the measurement date. In this circumstance, the Branch has to
rely on vaiues derived by independent brokers or internally-developed assumptions. Unobservable inputs are
developed based on the best information available fo the Company which may include the Branch's own
data or bid and ask prices in the dealer market.

Al} of the fair values reported at 31 December 2020 were determined using data provided by third-party pricing
services. Prices provided by third-party services are not binding offers but are estimated exit values. They are
based on observable market data inputs which can vary by security type. Such inputs include benchmark
yields, available trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, benchmark securities, bids, offers and other
market data.

As part of the Branch’s controls over pricing, management reviews and analyzes all prices obtained to insure
the reasonableness of the values, taking all available information inte account. One very important control is
the corroboration of prices obtained from third-party sources against other independent sources. When
corroborated prices produce small variations, the close correlation indicates observable inputs, and the median
value of the available prices is used as the Branch'’s final valuation. When comroborated prices present greater
variations, additional analysis is required to determine which value is the most appropriate. When one price is
available, management evaluates observable inputs and performs additional analysis to confirm that the price
is appropriate. All fair value measurements based on prices determined with observable market data are
reported as Level 1 or Level 2 measurements. As of 31 December 2020 and 2019, all securities were classified
as Level 2.

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2020

Significant Significant

Active Markets Other Unobservable
for Identical Observable Inputs
Assels Inputs
Total Fair
Description {Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3) Value
Bonds: Fair Value through
Profit and Loss
Governments 3 — § 73,520,913 § — § 73,520,913
Corporates - 61,591,264 — 61,591,264
Total Bonds $ — $ 135112177 § — $ 135,112,177
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Fair value measurements at 31 December 2019

Bescription
Bonds: Fair Value through

Profit and Loss
Governments
Corporates

Total Bonds

Significant Significant

Active Markets Other Unobservable
for Identical Observable Inputs
Assets Inputs
Total Fair
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Value
$ -— $ 38,366,927 § — $§ 38,366,927
—_ 56,178,753 — 56,178,753
3 — § 945458680 3% - § 94,545,680
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12, RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES TO OPERATING SURPLUS

AFTER TAXATION
2020 2019
Operating surplus after taxation $ 9570962 § 1,012,405
Add (less) non cash items:
Change in reserve for future policy benefits 2,537,931 7,784,996
Expenses and general advances pajd on behalf of the Branch 4,096,456 4,308,101
Unrealized fair value change (1,826,797} (184,586)
Change in current and deferred taxes 217,427 231,426
Change in bond amortization 1,022,161 476,185
Total non cash items 6,047,178 12,616,122
15,618,140 13,628,527
Movements in working capital:
Change in receivables from affiliates 1,664,535 882,945
Change in acerued investment income (254,910) (294,707)
Change in policy loans (325,420) (288,825)
Change in outstanding premiums 16,813 (88,109)
Change in prepayments 39 516
Change in policy claims and unearned premiums (89,023) 59,462
Change in premium taxes due — —
Change in other liabilities 285,767 345,053
Change in current tax liability {210,286) (206,349)
1,087,515 409,886
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 16,705,655 § 14,038,513
13. INCOME TAXES
2020 2019
Income taxes:
Current tax expense/(benefit) $ 217,427 § 231,426
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) — —
Prior period adjustment — —
Total expense $ 217,427 § 231,426
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The income tax expense on pre-tax accounting profit from operations reconciles to the income tax expense in the
financial statements as follows:

2020 2019
Profit before taxation 3 9,788,389 3 1,243,831
Income tax expense calculated at 28% in 2020 and 2019 $ 2,740,748 § 348,273
Effect of life insurance business - shareholder gain on savings business (141,585) 242329
Effect of non-life insurance business - non-deductible claims and commissions
and other non-taxable items {550,505) (447 ,867)
Current year losses utilized against policyholder base (206,640) (99,055)
Schedular income permanent differences {721,131) {633,997)
Tax rate difference on schedular income (268,517) (272,520)
Unused losses not recognised as deferred tax assets 1,220,605 1,853,069
Utilisation of previously unrecognized tax losses (1,855,548) {758,806)
Policyholder base loss/(profit) not recognized — o
Income tax expense 3 217,427 § 231,426

2020 2019
Deferred tax balances:
Deferred tax asset comprise — tax losses $ 13,983,113 $ 12,452,867
Deferred tax liability comprise — net reserve for future policy benefits (14,115,724)  (12,497,261)
Other 132,611 44,394
Net deferred tax balance $ — 5 —

Unrecognised Deferred Tax Balances - Deferred tax assets for tax losses available to be carried forward have
only been recognised to the extent of the deferred tax liability balance, as it is reasonable to expect that those tax
losses will be utilised in the future against the deferred tax liabilities. However, due to the uncertainty of future
income from life insurance, the remaining deferred tax balance from tax losses has not been recognised.

2020 2019
Shareholder base:
Losses $ 4359303 $ 6,618,103
Tax effect at 28% 1,220,605 1,853,069

The availability of the income tax losses is subject to minimum shareholder continuity or business continuity
requirements being met.

Income Tax Payable 2020 2019
Opening balance $ (397,973} § (372,896}
Provisional tax paid 210,286 206,348
Current year charge {217,427} (231,426}
Total income tax payable for the year $ {405,114) § (397,973)
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14.

15.

CONTROLLING ENTITIES

The cantrolling entity of American Income Life Insurance Company is Globe Life Inc. (formerly Torchmark
Corporation), a Company incorporated in the U.S.A

ACTUARY'S STATEMENT

The effective date of the actuarial report on policy liabilities and reserves is 31 December 2020, The actuarial
policy liabilittes and reserves were calcutated by Mr. John O. Norton, FSA, of American Income Life Insurance
Cormpany.

Mr. Peter Davies of Davies Financial and Actuarial Services, a Fellow of the New Zealand Scociety of Actuaries,
has certified that the amount of policy liabilities has been determined in accordance with Professional Standard
No. 20 of the New Zealand Society of Actuaries. The actuarial report was prepared by Mr, Peter Davies.

The actuary is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data from which the policy liabilities have been determined.

2020 2019
Policy liabilities:
Balance at beginning of vear $§ 27215212 $ 19,430,216
Movement in current year 2,537,931 7,784,996
Net reserve for future policy benefits $ 29,753,143 § 27215212
Policy liabilities comprises the following:
2020 2019
Value of future claims 3 164,558,374 $ 149,590,075
Value of future expenses 51,924,765 47,681,920
Value of future profit margins 26,401,910 27,111,937
Less value of future premiums (213,131,908) (187,168,720)
Net reserve for future policy benefits $ 29,753,143 § 27,215,212

The actuary has performed a liability adequacy test in accordance with NZ IFRS 4 and is satisfied as to the
accuracy of the data using the assumptions below.

Disclosure of Assumptions - Policy liabilities were computed using a projection approach. Two separate
projections were created for the Life business, Life plans and Accident and Hospital Indemnity plans.

Discount Rate - The 2020 discount rates are based on the Table of Risk-free Discount Rates at 31 Becember
2020 for Accounting Valuation Purposes published 7 January 2021 by the New Zealand Treasury. The 2018
discount rates are based on the Table of Risk-free Discount Rates at 31 December 2019 for Accounting
Valuation Purposes published 7 January 2020 by the New Zealand Treasury. The 2020 rates range from
0.24% 10 4.30% (2019: range from 1.06% to 4.30%).

Profit Carrier - The premium payable under each contract is the profit carrier. Future profits equal
approximately 12.8% of the value of future premiums for Life plans and 10.6% of the value of future premiums
for Accident & Hospital Indemnity plans.

Initial Expenses - For Life plans, 66% of issued premium plus 20% of first year commission. For Accident &
Hospital Indemnity plans, 66% of premium.
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16.

Management Expenses - For Life plans, $44 per policy per annum plus 3% of premium. For Accident &
Hospital Indemnity plans, $10 per policy per annum pius 13% of premium. These expenses are inclusive of
maintenance, other and investment management expenses presented in Note 5. The rate of inflation is
assumed fo be 2%, applied to per policy expense.

All calculations have been computed gross of tax, with a deferred tax liability held in respect of the difference
between published policy liabilities and policy tax reserves.

Mortality Rates - The mortality rates are based on the 2001 Valuation Basic Table with applicable factors.

Morbidity - The morbidity rates for 2009 issues and below have multiple factors ranging from 105% to 140%.
The morbidity rates for issues 2010 and after are updated based on recent experience studies.

Rates of Discontinuance - Variable scales per expected portfolio experience. The Life plans and Accident &
Hospital plans discontinuance rates were updated based on recent experience study.

Surrender Values - All Whole Life plans except “Permanent Life” plans have surrender values which are
guaranteed upon issue and expressed in terms of unit of coverage. The surrender values are tabular and were
calculated upon issue based on certain non-forfeiture interest rates, non-forfeiture factors and mortality tables.

The impact of change in discount rate on future profit margin is an increase of $1.3 million. The impact of
change in demographic and expense assumptions on future profit margin is a decrease of $1.6 million.

Sensitivity analyses for other assumptions were performed (refer to Note 11).

SOLVENCY

The solvency position has been calculated in accordance with the RBNZ Solvency Standard for Life Insurance
Business 2014, issued under the Insurance (Prudential Supervision} Act 2010, effective up to and including 31
December 2020.

2020 2019
Tetal Statutory Total Statutory
Custodial Fund Other Fund Custodial Fund Other Fund

|

Actual Solvency Capital $106,138,000 $ 22,830,000 $128,968,000 $ 72,351,000 $ 17,262,000 $ 89,613,000

Minimurm Solvency Capital 28,794,000 6,227 000 35,021,000 33,907 000 7,857,000 41,764,000
Solvency Margin $ 77,344000 % 16,603,000 § 93,947,000 $ 38444000 $ 9,405,000 $ 47,849,000
Solvency Ratio 369 % 367 % 368 % 213 % 220 % 215 %

Assets held in the Custodial Fund are only available io meet the liabilities of American Income Life Insurance
Company - New Zealand Branch. Assets held in the Other Account are legally available for the satisfaction of
debts of the American Income Life Insurance Company, not solely those appearing on the balance sheet of the
branch and its debts may result in claims against assets not appearing thereon.
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17. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are no contingent liabilities at 31 December 2020 and 2019,

18. NEW ZEALAND CUSTODY ACCOUNT

Assets (Cash and Securities) in the amount of $1398.4 million (2019 - $102.9 million) are held in the Public
Trust Custody account. This balance is sufficient to meet the solvency requirements set forth in ISPA 2010.

19. CREDIT RATING

American income Life Insurance Company has an A credit rating from AM Best,
20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company is not aware of any events occurring subsequent to the close of the books for this statement that
may have a material effect on its financial condition.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
American Income Life Insurance Company

We have audited the accompanying statutory-basis financial statements of American Income Life
Insurance Company (the "Company"), which comprise the statutory-basis statements of admitted
assets, liabilities, and capital and surplus as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related
statutory-basis statements of operations, changes in capital and surplus, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the statutory-hasis financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Statutory-Basis Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these statutory-basis financial
statements in accordance with the accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the Indiana
Department of Insurance. Management is also responsible for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statutory-basis financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the statutory-basis financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the statutory-basis financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the statutory-basis
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the
statutory-basis financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the statutory-basis financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Basis for Adverse Opinion on Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States
of America

As described in Note 1 to the statutory-basis financial statements, the statutory-basis financial
statements are prepared by American Income Life Insurance Company using the accounting practices
prescribed or permitted by the Indiana Department of Insurance, which is a basis of accounting other
than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, to meet the
reqguirements of the Indiana Department of Insurance.

The effects on the statutory-basis financial statements of the variances between the statutory-basis of
accounting described in Note 1 to the statutory-hasis financial statements and accounting principles



generally accepted in the United States of America, although not reasonably determinable, are
presumed to be material.

Adverse Opinion on Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of
America

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion on
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America paragraph, the statutory-
basis financial statements referred to above do not present fairly, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial position of American
Income Life Insurance Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, or the results of its operations or
its cash flows for the years then ended.

Opinion on Statutory Basis of Accounting

In our opinion, the statutory-basis financial staterments referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the admitted assets, liabilities, and capital and surplus of American Income Life Insurance
Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
the years then ended, in accordance with the accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the
Indiana Department of Insurance as described in Note 1 to the statutory-basis financial statements.

Report on Supplemental Scheduies

Our 2020 audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 2020 statutory-basis
financial statements as a whole, The supplemental schedule of investment risk interrogatories, the
supplemental summary investment schedule, and the supplemental schedule of Reinsurance Contracts
with Risk-Limiting Features as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 2020 statutory-basis financial
statements. These schedules are the responsibility of the Company's management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the statutory-
basis financial statements. Such schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
our audit of the 2020 statutory-basis financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such schedules directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the statutory-basis financial statements or to the statutory-basis financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, such schedules are fairly stated in all material respects
in relation to the 2020 statutory-basis financial statements as a whole.

Deleiste s Jnion10#

April 26, 2021




AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

STATUTORY-BASIS STATEMENTS OF ADMITTED ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND CAPITAL AND SURPLUS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

ADMITTED ASSETS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Note 2):

Bonds—at amortized cost (fair value: 2020—$4,543,040; 2019—53,988,795).

Preferred stock—affiliated (fair value: 2020—$39,169; 2019--$39,169).... .

Comman stock—affiliated (amortized cost: 2020—3$14,175; 2019—%$14,175)..

Common stock—unaffiliated (amortized cost: 2020—8$82; 2019—§82).......
Mortgage Loans........................o.
Cash, cash equivalents, and shori-term investments ...

Contract loans—secured by cash values.. ...

Other invested assets—net (encumbrances: 2020—%$39,376; 2019—%9,951).

Total cash and investments
INVESTMENT INCOME DUE AND ACCRUED ... ..
ACCIDENT AND HEALTH PREMIUMS DUE AND UNPAID

INSURANCE PREMIUMS DEFERRED AND UNCOLLECTED (Note 5). .. ...

CURRENT FEDERAL INCOME TAX RECOVERABLE .

NET DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSET (Note 8)... .

RECEIVABLES FRCM PARENT, SUBSIDIARIES, AND AFFILIATES .
AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM REINSURANCE—AFFILIATED.
OTHER ADMITTED ASSETS.

TOTAL ADMITTED ASSETS......... O SR T U PRSPPI

2020 2019

$ 3,718,350 $ 3,502,377
39,169 38,169
39,129 40,517

1,138 897

29,770 37,002
33,000 35,991
227,233 215,996
216,370 165,041
4,304,249 4,036,990
57,388 56,244

2,233 2,046
185,537 192,806
7,287 3,083

28,470 25,434

6,772 5,085

73,872 61,691

9,108 7,744

§ 4674916 § 4,391,103
{Continued)



AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

STATUTORY-BASIS STATEMENTS OF ADMITTED ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND CAPITAL AND SURPLUS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL AND SURPLUS

LIABILITIES: 2020 2019
Aggregate reserves for future policy benefits (Note 4):
Life and annuity.... .. ... RPN . % 3,729,699 $ 3,522,452
Accident and health—including unearned premium: 2020—$5,511; 2019—%5,239 147,026 133,176
Policy and contract claims (Note 4):
Lifeand annuity... . ........... ... . . . R L 55,746 46,487
Accident and health B BRSO 17,829 16,767
Deposit-type contracts (Note 4)... . SN _ S 88,287 87,385
Amounts payable under reinsurance contracts—affiliated (Note 4) ... . 96,749 81,752
Interest maintenance reserve.. ... ... ... ... EEUT OO RNET RO 32,941 34,646
Asset valuationreserve. ... .. . ... DR 38,668 40,447
General insurance expenses due and other liabilities. ... ... . . 128,117 80,706
Total liabilities.................... 4,336,082 4,043,818
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 10}
CAPITAL AND SURPLUS (Note 9):
Common stock, $1 par value per share—authorized: 23,360,214 shares (assued
and outstandmg 2020 and 2019—11,680,107 shares). .. ... ... 11,680 11,680
Paid-in and contributed surplus.... ... ... ... SR 66,889 66,889
Surplus notes .. ... . SEUUIOTRRUTO 25,000 25,000
Unassigned surplus.............. 235,285 243,716
Total capital and surplus. . . ST 338,854 347,285
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL AND SURPLUS. ... ... § 4,674,916 3 4,391,103
Ses notes to statutory-basis financial statements. (Concluded)




AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

STATUTORY-BASIS STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

REVENUE 2020 2019
Premiums... ... . e % BUBGSB §  B47.519
Net investment income—net of expenses: 2020—%40,526; 2019—%$39,817 (Note 2) 186,315 176,107
Amortization of interest maintenance reserve ... ... . ... . 3,306 3,328
Commissions and expense allowances on reinsurance ceded (Note 4) 219,484 192,099
Reserve adjustments con reinsurance ceded {Note 4). ... R S 5,017 5,830
Miscellangous income ... ... ... .. ... SR e 2,342 2,196

Total revenue. ... ... B e . e 1,313,122 1,227,079

BENEFITS AND EXPENSES
Death benefits ... . . . .. ... - B TR D RSP RTITN 181,745 155,142
Disability and accident and health benefits (Note 4)... .. .. ... .. ... 25,784 25157
Surrenderbenefits... ... ... SRR B OO 62,242 63,893
Annuity benefits ... ... U 22,294 30,476
Interest and other benefits on policy and contractfunds. ... 7,001 6,707
Increase (decrease) in aggregate reserves for future policy benefits .. . 210,492 183,944
COMIMAISSIONS ON PIEMIUIIS. . . ... i o e e 422,843 371,348
Commissions and expense allowances on reinsurance assumed (Note 4} ... 148 136
General expenses and insurance taxes, licenses, andfees ... ... 158,682 161,314
Change in loading on deferred and uncollected premiums (Note 5)......... ... ... ... (6,373) {7,342)

Total benefits and expenses. ... . 1,084,858 990,775

GAIN FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE FEDERAL INCOME TAXES AND NET

REALIZED CAPITAL GAINS (LOSSES) ... s 228,264 236,304

FEDERAL INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT)(Note 8).......... ... 34,332 37,240

NET GAIN FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE NET REALIZED CAPITAL GAINS

(LS SED). . o e e 193,932 199,064

NET REALIZED CAPITAL GAINS (LOSSES}—Net of federal income tax expense

(benefit): 2020—5§(571); 2019—5$1,040, and gains (losses) fransferred to the interest

maintenance reserve net of taxes: 2020~u$1 B01; 2019—%645. ... ... (9,960} (595)

NETINCOME............ vt et e $ 183972 $ 198,489

See notes to statuiory-basis financial statements.



AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

STATUTORY-BASIS STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND SURPLUS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

{Dollar amounts in thousands)

2020 2019
CAPITAL AND SURPLUS—Beginning ofyear................ e s $ 347285 § 342,970
Net income . . S . IS NP RPOURTRRR 183,972 198,469
Change in net unrealized capital gains (losses}—net oftax.. ... .. . : : (5,023) (4,390)
Change in net unrealized foreign exchange capital gains (losses)}—net of tax (Note
Change in net deferred income tax (Note 8). ... .. . .. 8,804 10,453
Change in nenadmitted assets.. ... (5,251) (3,935)
Change in asset valuation reserve. .. .. . . e T 1,779 (5,705)
Common stock dividends paid to stockholder(Note 8). ... ... . (199,064) (191,362)
tnitial commission and expense allowance on reinsurance assumed ... . ... .. (153} (153)
Net change in capital and surplus. . . PP U (8,431) 4,315
CAPITAL AND SURPLUS—End of year...............cc.ccocovinnee e e s § 338854 § 347,285

See notes to statutory-basis financial statements.




AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

STATUTORY-BASIS STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
{Dollar amounts in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2020 2019
Premiums collected—net of reinsurance. . ... . . $ 925071 $ 875799
Net investmentincome . ... ... ... USROS 205,509 196,116
Miscellaneous income.. ... .. . U U PO 213,347 188,576

Total cash provided by operatlng activities. . .. .. 1,343,927 1,260,491
Benefit and loss related paymenis... . - . . (287,421) (277,129)
Commissions, expenses paid, and aggregate write-ins for deductions . . o (581,720) (526,037)
Dividends paid fo policyholders. ... (12} (16)
Federal income taxes (paidyrecovered .. .. . .. ... ... . .. (37,913} (43,073)

Total cash used in operating activities.. L IR SRR (907,066) {846,255)

Net cash (used in) provided by operattng actwltles 436,861 414,236

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Praceeds from investments sold, matured, or repaid:
Bonds .. 88,763 99,779
Stocks. ... .. ... .. — 436
Mortgage loans. .. .. B S R PSSO PSRRI 7.735 —_
QOtherinvested assets..... ... ... RO IO PPR RS 7,054 59
Miscellaneous proceeds. ... . . e N . y e —_ 4,000

Tetal investment proceeds... .. ... IS U U UU RO URRUD PP PR 103,552 104,274

Cost of investments acquired:

BondS . (303,445) (259,645)
Mortgage loans ... .. ... . {1,440) (23,091)
Realestate .. ... .. .. .. . ... . S P TP {1,789) (19)
QOtherinvested assefs ... ... ... .. . OO SR (70,673) {29,415)
Miscellaneous applications.. ... .. ... .. (99) —

Total cost of investments acquired..... ... . (377,448) (312,170}

Net (increase) decrease in contractloans. .. ... ... . SRS (11,237} {17,070}
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities............. et aa e (285,131) (224,966)

FINANCING AND MISCELLANEOUS SOURCES (USES)

Borrowed funds.. ... .. R PR 40,000 —
MNet deposits on deposit-type contracts and other insurance liabilities. o . 802 (607)
Dividends to stockholders... ... (199,064) (191,362)
Other cash provided (applied) - . N N 3,631 3,614

Net cash (used in} provided by financing and miscellaneous sources...... (154,631) (188,455)

NET CHANGE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND SHORT-TERM

INVESTMENTS . T (2,801) 815

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
Beginning of year..... . . e e 35,991 35,178
Endofyear. ... ... § 33,090 § 35,991

{Continued)



AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

STATUTORY-BASIS STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
{Dollar amounts in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions:

Exchanges of bonds.....
Unsefiledtrades ... ... ...

Non-cash capitalized interest on bonds ..

See notes to statutory-basis financial statements.

2020 2019
$ 54,818 § 21,807
— 99
64 —_
{Concluded)




AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO STATUTORY-BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT STATUTORY ACCOUNTING POLICIES

American Income Life Insurance Company (the "Company" or "American Income"), an insurance
company domiciled in the State of Indiana, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Globe Life Inc. (the "Parent
Company"). The Company owns 100% of National Income Life Insurance Company, domiciled in the
State of New York.

The Company is a life and accident and health insurer licensed in 49 states and the District of Columbia.
The Company is also licensed to sell insurance in Canada and New Zealand. The Company is subject to
state insurance regulations and periodic examinations by state insurance departments.

The following states represent the largest concentrations of premiums:

2020
California . TS OSSO PP U REPPRPION 11 %
Chio ... .. S S TP P TSSO RP 7%
Texas . ... ... U OO P TP P PP 6 %
Pennsylvania. ... R _ , RO 5%
Florida. . ... .. e RO USSR 5%
Minois................ .. . . R e 4 %

No other states represent greater than 3% of total premiums. Canada represents 9% of premiums.

Basis of Presenfation—The accompanying statutory-basis financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting practices prescribed or permitted by Indiana Department of Insurance (the
"Department"). The State of Indiana has adopted the WNational Association of Insurance
Commissioners' ("NAIC"} Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual, which includes all Statements of
Statutory Accounting Principles ("SSAP") as the basis of its statutory accounting principles. There are no
significant differences between the NAIC SSAP and the accounting practices prescribed for life and health
insurance companies by the Department that are applicable to the Company.



AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO STATUTCRY-BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
{Dollar amounts in thousands except for shares)

NAIC statutory accounting principles vary in some respects from accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP). The primary differences befween GAAP-basis and statutory-
basis of accounting include:

Item

Description

GAAP Treatment

Statufory Treatment

Policy acquisition
costs

Costs associated with the
successful acquisition of an
insurance policy.

Deferred and amortized over the
life of the palicy, if recoverable
from policy revenues.

Charged to operations as incurred.

Future policy
benefit reserves

Excess of future policy claims
over future premiums.

Based on the Campany's
estimates of mortality, morbidity,
interest, persistency, and
withdrawals.

Based on statutory mortality,
morbidity, and interest and
withdrawal requirements and
reported net of the effects of
indemnity reinsurance fransactions.

Interest
maintenance
reserve

Statutory-basis only investment
reserve used to account for
interest-rate related realized
gains and losses.

Capital gains and losses
recognized as incurred.

Deferred recognition of realized
capital gains and losses resulting
from changes in the general level of
interest rates; amortized into incomse
over the expected remaining life of
the investments sold,

Asset valuation
reserve

Statutory-basis only investment
reserve used {o account for
default and equity risks.

Not applicable.

Required to offset potential credit-
related invesiment losses; changes
in the reserve charged fo surplus.

Deferred premiums

Partion of premium not
currently due,

Offset {o reserves,

Recognized as an asset on the
balance sheef.

Nonadmitted assets

Assets unabie to be easily
converted to cash.

All assefs are recorded on the
balance sheet.

Recegnition on the balance sheet
disallowed; charged to surplus.

Investment in
subsidiaries

Entity that is direcily or
indirectly owned and controlled
by a reporting entity.

Consolidated.

Recorded under the equity methed
of accounting.

Investment in
Partnerships, Joint
Ventures, and LLCs

Investments that provide
partnership interests to the
Company.

Recorded under the equity
methed of accounting, or fair
value through net income.

Recerded under the equity method
of accounting.

Low-Income
housing tax credits

Invesiments in federal and
certain state sponsored flow-
through entities for tax
purposes.

Accounted for under the
proportional amortized cost
methed, excluding guaranteed
partnerships entered into prior to
2015, which are accounted for
under the effective vield method.,

Accounted for under the
praportional amortization method.

Bonds and short-
term investments

Fixed-income investments with
purpose cf collecting interest.

Generally carried at fair value,

Generally carried at amorlized cost.

Preferred stock

Class of shares; holders have
preference as to the payment
of dividends or distribution of

assets on ligquidation.

Generally carried at fair value.

Valued as prescribed by NAIC
Securities Valuation Office

Deferred taxes

An asset or liability on the
company’s balance sheet due
to temporary differences.

A provision is made for deferred
income i{axes on temporary
differences between the financial
reporting and the {ax bases of
assets and liabilities.

NAIC SAP requires an amount to be
recorded for deferred taxes. The
amount of deferred income tax
assets may not be fully recognized
as admitted assets.

OCI statement

Statement of revenues,
expenses, gains and losses
that have not yel been realized.

Required presentation.

Not applicable.

Cash and cash
equivalents

Cash or assets that can be
readily converted info cash.

Negative balances are reported
as a liability.

Negative balances are reported
within cash,

investment in
Surplus Notes

Fixed-income instrument with
debt and equity characteristics.

Generally carried at fair value.

Generally carried at amoriized cost,

Surplus notes
{issued)

Fixed-income instrument with
debt and equity characteristics.

Reported as long-term debt.

Reported as capital and surplus.

{.0ss Contingencies

An existing condition or
situation involving uncertainty
as to possible loss that will
ultimately be resclved when
one or mare future event(s)
occur or fail to oceur.

If a loss is probable, estimable
and only a range of loss can be
estimated, the minimum of the
range is required to be recorded.

If & loss is prabable, estimable and
only a range of loss can be
estimated, the mid-point of the
range is required to be recorded.

10




AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO STATUTORY-BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Dollar amounts in thousands except for shares)

Significant accounting practices used in the preparation of the accompanying statutory-basis financial
statements are as follows:

Revenue and Policy Acquisition Cost Recognition—Premiums are recognized over the premium-
paying period of the policies. Unearned premiums on accident and health policies are calculated on a pro-
rata basis. Consideration received on deposit-type contracts, which do not contain any life contingencies,
is recorded directly to the related liability. Policy acquisition costs, such as commissions and other costs
related to successfully acquiring new business, are_ charged to current operations as incurred.

Future Policy Benefits—Aggregate reserves for future policy benefits for individual life and health
insurance policies have been provided on either the net level premium method, the commissioner’s
reserve valuation method, or the fwo-year preliminary term method. Accordingly, the reserves are
calculated based on estimates of mortality, morbidity, and interest and withdrawal requirements, as
prescribed by state insurance regulatory agencies. Interest rate assumptions range from 2.25% to 6.0%.
For life insurance policies, mortality rates are primarily obtained from the following statutery mortality
tables: 1941 C.8.0., 1858 C.8.0., 1980 C.8.0., 2001 C.8.0., and 2017 C.5.0, Tables. For business
issued in 2019 and later, the PBR reserve method has been used. For health insurance policies, morbidity
rates are based primarily on the 1985 NAIC Cancer Claim Cost Tables. Future policy benefit reserves for
annuity contracts are based on either the commissioner’s annuity reserve valuation method, with
appropriate statutory interest and mortality assumptions, or the accumulated contract value. Annuity
reserve interest rate assumptions range from 2.5% to 6.0%. Reserves for deposit-type funds are equal to
deposits received and interest credited to the benefit of contract holders, less withdrawals that represent a
return to the contract holder.

Policy and Contract Claims—Policy and contract claims include a provision for reported claims and
claims incurred but not reported. The provision for claims incurred but not reported is estimated based on
Company experience.

Federal Income Taxes—The provision for federal income taxes on aperations is based upon taxes that
are currently payable, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement book values and tax bases of assets and
liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or seitled,
Deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation allowances when it is determined that it is more likely than
not the deferred tax asset will not be fully realized. Realizable deferred tax assets are further subject to
admissibility tests performed pursuant to SSAP No. 101, /ncome Taxes, Admitted deferred tax assets and
liabilities are reflecied as a component of capital and surplus.

Nonadmitted Assets—Nonadmitted assets (principally a portion of deferred income tax assets, certain
furniture and equipment, agents' debit balances, prepaid expenses, and other amounts receivable) have
been charged directly to unassigned surplus.

Interest Maintenance Reserve (IMR) and Asset Valuation Reserve (AVR)—The IMR is maintained as
prescribed by the NAIC for the purpose of deferring realized gains and losses on the disposal of bonds
resulting from changes in the overall level of interest rates. Such realized gains and losses are amortized
into income over the approximate remaining life of bonds sold. An AVR is maintained as prescribed by the
NAIC for the purpose of providing for default and equity risks related to the Company’s invested assets.
Changes in the AVR are charged directly to surplus.

1



AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO STATUTORY-BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Pollar ameunts in thousands except for shares)

Investments—Bonds and stock are recorded in accordance with rules promulgated by the NAIC. Bonds
eligible for amortization under such rules are reported at amortized cost using the interest method, except
for those bonds with a NAIC designation of 6, which are reported at the lower of amortized cost or fair
value. Preferred stock is reported at amortized cost, except for preferred stock with a NAIC designation of
4-6, which is reported at the lower of amortized cost or fair value. Common stock of nonaffiliates is stated
at estimated fair value. Common stock of affiliates is stated at their underlying statutory-basis capital and
surplus. Contract loans are carried at unpaid principal balance of the loan.

Loan-backed securities are reported at amortized cost, except for those with an NAIC designation of 6,
which shall be reported at the lower of amortized cost or fair value. Premiums and discounts on loan-
backed bonds and structured securities are amortized using the retrospective method based on
anticipated prepayments at the date of purchase. Prepayment assumptions are obtained from broker/
dealer survey values or internal estimates. Changes in estimated cash flows from the original
assumptions are accounted for using the retrospective method. The Company uses original cost as the
basis for applying the retrospective method.

Commercial Mortgage loans participations ("Commercial Mortgage Loans" or "Mortgage Loans"} are
reported at unpaid principal balances, net of any unamortized discount or premium and allowance for loan
losses, The loans are secured by the underlying real estate.

The accounting for investments in limited partnerships that provide low-income housing tax credits is
ouflined in the Low-lncome Housing Tax Credit Interests section below. Investments in other limited
partnerships are accounted for under rules set forth by the NAIC, and are recorded based on the
underlying audited U.S. GAAP equity of the investee.

Investments in surplus notes are accounted for under rules set forth by the NAIC. Surplus notes rated
NAIC 1-2 are reported at amortized cost, and surplus notes rated NAIC 3-6 are reported at the lower of
amortized cost and fair value.

Fair Value Measurements, Investments in Securities—The investments carried at fair value have been
classified, for disclosure purposes, based on a hierarchy defined by SSAP No. 100, Fair Value
Measurements. The hierarchy consists of three levels to indicate the quality of the fair value
measurements as described below:

Level 1—Fair values are based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2—Fair values are based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include gquoted
prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets
or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for
the asset or liability, or inputs that can otherwise be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3—Fair values are based on inputs that are considered unobservable where there is little, if
any, market activity for the asset or liability as of the measurement date. In this circumstance, the
Company has to rely on values derived by independent brokers or internally-developed
assumptions. Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available to the
Company which may include the Company’s own data cr bid and ask prices in the dealer market.

The great majority of the Company's bonds are not actively fraded and direct quotes are not generally

available. Management therefore determines the fair values of these securities after consideration of data
provided by third-party pricing services, independent broker/dealers, and other resources.

12




AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO STATUTORY-BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
{Dollar amounts in thousands except for shares)

Approximately 98% of the fair value reported at December 31, 2020 is determined using data provided by
third-party pricing services. Prices provided by these services are not binding offers, but are estimated
exit values. Third-party pricing services use proprietary pricing models to determine security values by
discounting cash flows using a market-adjusted spread to a benchmark yield. For all asset classes within
the Company's significant security types, third-party services use a common valuation technigue to model
the price of the investments using observable market data. The foundation for these models consists of
developing vield spreads based on multiple observable market data inputs, including but not limited to:
benchmark yield curves, actual trading activity, new issue yields, broker-dealer quotes, issuer spreads,
two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, sector-specific data, economic data, and other
inputs that are corroborated in the market. Pricing vendors monitor and review their pricing data
continuously with current market and economic data feeds, augmented by ongoing communication within
the dealer community.

Using the observable market inputs described above, spreads to an appropriate benchmark yield are
further developed by the vendors for each security based on security-specific and/or sector-specific risk
factors, such as a security's terms and conditions (coupon, maturity, and call features), credit rating,
sector, liquidity, collateral or other cash flow options, and other factors that could impact the risk of the
security. Embedded repayment options, such as call and redemption features, are also taken into account
in the pricing models. When the spread is determined, it is added to the security's benchmark yield. The
security's expected cash flows are discounted using this spread-adjusted yield, and the resulting present
value of the discounted cash flows is the evaluated price.

When third-party vendor prices are not available, the Company attempts to obfain valuations from other
sources, including but not limited to broker/dealers, broker quotes, and prices on comparable securities,

When valuations have been obtained for all securities in the portfolio, management reviews and analyzes
the prices to ensure their reasonableness, taking into account available observable information. When
two or more valuations are available for a security and the variance between the prices is 10% or less, the
close correlation suggests similar observable inputs were used in deriving the price, and the mean of the
prices is used. Securities valued in this manner are classified as Level 2. When the variance between two
or more valuations for a security exceeds 10%, additional analysis is performed to determine the most
appropriate value for that security, using resources such as broker quotes, prices on comparable
securities, recent trades, and any other observable market data. Further review is performed on the
available valuations to determine if they can be corroborated within reasonable tolerance to any other
observable evidence. If one of the valuations or the mean of the available valuations for a security can be
corroborated with other observable evidence, then the corroborated value is used and reported as Level
2. The Company uses information and analytical techniques deemed appropriate for determining the point
within the range of reasonable fair value estimates that is most representative of fair value under current
market conditions. Valuations that cannot be carroborated within a reasonable tolerance are classified as
Level 3.

The Company invesis in a portfolio of private placement bonds which are not actively traded. This
portfolio is managed by third-parties. The portfolic managers provide valuations for the bonds based on a
pricing matrix utilizing observable inputs, such as the benchmark treasury rate and published sector
indices, and unobservable inputs such as an internally-developed credit rating. If observable inputs
cannot be corroborated, the fair values are classified as Level 3.

NAIC SAP requires certain investments to be measured and reported at fair value. These include
common stock, bonds rated NAIC 6 and preferred stock rated NAIC 4-6 whose fair values are less than
amortized cost, and surplus notes rated NAIC 3-6 whose fair values are less than amoriized cost.
Transfers between fair value levels are recognized as of the end of the reporting period in which they
oceur.
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NOTES TO STATUTORY-BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Pollar amounts in thousands except for shares)

Fair Value Measurements, Other Financial Instruments—Fair value of cash, cash equivalents, and
short-term investments approximates carrying value. Fair value of the Parent Company's preferred stock
was obtained from the Securlties Valuation Office (SVO). Contract loans are an integral part of the life
insurance policies which the Company has in force and, in the Company's opinion, cannot be valued
separately. Fair values of mortgage loans are determined based upon expected cash flows discounted at
an appropriate risk-adjusted rate. The fair vaiue of investments in limited partnerships that provide low-
income housing tax credits is based on discounted projected cash flows. The fair value of limited
partnerships in low income housing is considered Level 3. Investments in other limited partnerships
recorded under the equity method of accounting are excluded from the fair value hierarchy.

Other policy holder funds include interest-bearing, deposit-type accounts representing amounts payable
on demand. The fair value of such deposit-type accounts is equal to the amount payable on demand and
considered Level 2.

Although management is not aware of any factors that would significantly affect the estimated fair value
amounts, such amounts have not been comprehensively revalued for purposes of these financial
statements since December 31, 2020, and therefore, current estimates of fair value may differ
significantly from the amounts presented herein.

Impairment of Investments—The Company's portfolio of bonds fluctuates in value due to changes in
interest rates in the financial markets as well as other factors. Fluctuations caused by market rate
changes have little bearing on whether or not the investment will be ultimately recoverable. Therefore, the
Company considers declines in value resulting from changes in market interest rates to be temporary. In
certain circumstances, however, the Company determines that the decline in value of a security is other-
than-temporary and writes the book value of the security down to fair value, realizing an investment loss.
The determination that an impairment is other-than-temporary is highly subjective and involves the careful
consideration of many factors.

Among the factors considered are:

# The length of time and extent to which the security has been impaired

# The reason(s) for the impairment

* The financial condition of the issuer and near-term prospects for recovery in fair value of the security
s The Company's ability and intent to hold the security until anticipated recovery

» Expected future cash flows

The relative weight given to each of these factors can change over time as facts and circumstances
change. In many cases, management believes it is appropriate to give relatively more weight to
prospective factors than to retrospective factors. Prospective factors that are given more weight include
prospects for recovery, the Company's ability and intent to hold the security until anticipated recovery, and

expected future cash flows.

Among the facts and information considered in the process are:

* Financial statements of the issuer

e Changes in credit ratings of the issuer

» The value of the underlying collateral

News and information included in press releases issued by the issuer
News and information reported in the media concerning the issuer

News and information published or otherwise provided by credit analysts
The nature and amount of recent and expected future sources and uses of cash
Default on a required payment

¢ |ssuer bankruptey filings
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NOTES TO STATUTORY-BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
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While all available information is taken into account, it is difficult to predict the ultimately recoverable
amount of a distressed or impaired security.

For asset-backed securities, additional information is gathered and analysis performed on the individual
underlying collateral and estimates of potential future collateral performance. Multiple cash flow scenarios
are calculated based on various loss rate assumptions and used to assess the likelihood of future
possible impairment.

Mortgage loans are considered impaired when it is probable, based upon current information and events,
that the Company will be unable to collect all contractual amounts due. Impairment is measured based on
the excess of the loan balance over the fair value of the collateral, as determined by a current appraisal,
and is recorded as an unrealized loss through a valuation allowance. If an impairment is deemed to be
other than temporary, then a direct write-down is recorded as a realized loss, thus establishing a new cost
basis egual to the fair value of the collateral less the cost estimated to obtain and sell the property.

The Company's commercial mortgage loan portfolio is managed by an unaffiliated third-party manager. As
part of its credit-monitoring process, the third-party manager evaluates several risk criteria for each loan.
These include quantitative measures, such as the underlying collateral value, loan-to-value ratio, and
debt-service coverage ratio; as well as qualitative risk parameters, such as borrower experfence, specific
property fundamentals, local real estate market conditions, financial and business condition of the
borrower, and ease of liquidation. After consideration of the third-party manager's credit analysis, the
Company decides if a loan loss allowance should be established.

Investment [ncome—Investment income consists primarily of interest and dividends. Interest is
recognized on an accrual basis and dividends are recorded as earned. Interest income on mortgage-
backed securities and asset-backed securities is determined on the effective yield method based on
estimated principal repayments. Prepayment penalty and acceleration fees on callable bonds are
recognized in investment income, as received. Interest earned on contract loans is charged in arrears and
recognized ratably. The Company accrues interest income on impaired loans to the extent it is deemed
collectible (delingquent less than 90 days) and the loan continues to perform under its original or
restructured contractual terms, Interest income on non-performing loans is generally recognized on a
cash basis, Interest income on mortgage loans is accrued and recorded net of servicing fees. Interest that
is 180 days past due and that is still deemed collectible is accrued, but nonadmitted. Any interest deemed
uncollectible is written off as a charge against investment income. Dividends and distributions from limited
partnerships are recognized as investment income to the extent that they are not in excess of
undistributed accumulated earnings. Dividends and distributions in excess of undistributed earnings are
recorded as a reduction to the carrying value of the investment. The Company's share of undistributed
earnings and losses included in net unrealized capital gains (losses) are credited or charged directly {0
surplus.

Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined on a specific identification method.
Realized gains and losses on debt securities and preferred stock resulting from an overall change in
market interest rates are deferred through the IMR and amortized into income over the remaining
expected life of the disposed investment. Credit-related gains and losses on debt securities and preferred
stock as well as realized gains and losses on unaffiliated common stock are recorded in the AVR and
included in the accompanying statutory-basis statement of operations. Unrealized gains and losses on
unaffiiated common stock are also reflected in the AVR. The change in the AVR is reflected as an
increase or decrease in surplus. Unrealized gains and losses on affiliated common stock are reflected
directly in surplus through the change in unrealized capital gains and losses. The Company's share of
undistributed earnings and losses included in net unrealized capital gains (losses) are credited or charged
directly to surplus.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Short-Term Investments—Cash includes cash on hand and amounts
due from banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
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NOTES TO STATUTORY-BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
AS OF AND FCR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2013
(Dollar amounts in thousands except for shares)

months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents include reverse repurchase
agreements, which are secured by bonds and generally mature overnight. The Company's policy requires
a minimum of 102% of the agreements' purchase price fo be maintained as collateral. The Company does
not take possession of this collateral. For further discussion about investments in reverse repurchase
agreements including a description of the underlying collateral as of year-end, please refer to Note 2. The
Company considers all investments with remaining maturities {(or repurchase dates under repurchase
agreements) of one year or less at the time of acquisition (excluding those investments classified as cash
equivalents) to be short-term investments, which are stated at amortized cost.

Reinsurance—The Company cedes and assumes insurance risks with other companies. Aggregate
reserves for future policy benefits, premiums, and expenses are reported after deduction of amounts
relating to reinsurance ceded and addition of amounts relating to reinsurance assumed. The Company
remains obligated for amounts ceded in the event that the reinsurers do not meet their obligations. Please
refer to Note 4 for further discussion.

Stock Options—Certain employees of the Company have been granted options to buy shares of Globe
Life Inc. stock at market value on the grant date under the provisions set forth as part of the Globe Life
Inc. stock option plans. The Company has no legal obligation under the plans; however, an expense is
allocated to the Company based upon the options granted to its employees under the plans, and it is
recorded within the General expenses and insurance taxes, licenses, and fees line item within the
accompanying statutory-basis financial statements, Excess tax benefits related to the exercise of stock
options are recorded as a component of federal income tax expense. The allocated expense for stock
compensation recorded during 2020 and 2019 totaled $9,920 and $8,397, respectively.

Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Interests—The Company has invested in flow-through entities that
provide low-income housing tax credits {LIHTC) and other related federal income tax and state premium
tax benefits to the Company. The return on a portion of the Company's investments has been guaranteed
by unrelated third parties. The investments are accounted for using the proportional amortized-cost
method, The federal income tax benefits accrued during the year are recorded in income tax expense.
The premium tax benefits, net of related amortization, are recorded in net investment income. The
amount of LIHTC and other tax benefits recognized were $18,717 and $18,140 during 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the LIHTC investment balances were $60,310 and $68,630,
respectively. The amounts recorded within other invested assets are presented net of encumbrances for
unpaid contributions. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, unpaid contributions were $39,376 and $9,951,
respectively. All of the remaining unpaid confributions are expected to be paid by 2026.

Currently, the LIHTC properties are not subject to any regulatory reviews. The Company's involvement is
restricted to its limited partnership interest in the LIHTC entities. The Company has not provided any other
financial support to the entities beyond its commitments to fund its limited partnership interests, and there
are no arrangements or agreements with any of the interests to provide other financial support. The
maximum loss exposure relative to these interests is limited to their carrying value.

As of December 31, 2020, there are 13 years of remaining unexpired tax credits for low-income housing
tax credit investments with a required holding period of 18 years, compared to 12 years of remaining
unexpired tax credits for low-income housing tax credit investments with a reguired holding period of 17
years as of December 31, 2019.

Foreign Currency Translation—The Company records assets, liabilities, and operations of foreign
branches based upon the functional currency of each entity. The determination of the functional currency
is made based on the appropriate economic indicators. Assets and liabilities of the foreign branches and
subsidiaries are transiated from the functional currency ta US dollars at the exchange rates in effect at
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each year-end; and income and expense accounts are translated at the weighied-average exchange
rates during the year.

Risk-Based Capital—The Depariment has adopted risk-based capital (RBC}) requirements for life
insurance companies, as promulgated by the NAIC, and these requirements are applicable to the
Company. The RBC calculation serves as a benchmark for the regulation of life insurance companies by
state insurance regulators. RBC provides for surplus formulas similar to target surplus formulas used by
commercial rating agencies. The formulas specify various weighted factors that are applied to statutory-
basis financial balances or various levels of activity based on the perceived degree of risk, and are set
forth in the RBC requirements. The resulting figure is the authorized control level capital (ACL).

The RBC guidelines define specific capital levels based on a company’'s ACL that are determined by the
ratio of a company’s iotal adjusted capital (TAC) to its ACL. TAC is equal to statutory capital, plus the AVR
and any voluntary investment reserves, 50% of dividend liability, and certain other specified adjustments.
Companles where TAC is less than or equal to 2.0 times ACL are subject to certain corrective actions as
set forth in RBC requirements.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the statutory TAC of the Company exceeded the level requiring
corrective action.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with statutory accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the statutory-basis financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
estimates susceptible to significant change are those used in determining the liability for aggregate
reserves for future policy benefits, losses, and claims. Although some variability is inherent in these
estimates, management believes the amounts provided are adequate.

Allocation of Expenses—The Company operates within a group under Globe Life Inc. where personnel
and facilities are shared. Under terms of the management contract, the subsidiaries of Globe Life Inc. are
allocated general and administrative expenses based on total premium. The allocated amount is in
proportion to the Company incurring the expense as if the expense had been paid solely by the Company.

COVID-19—The effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and U.S. and international responses, are wide-
ranging, costly, disruptive and rapidly changing. Despite these challenges, the Company continues to
effectively conduct business operations as it monitors the impact of the pandemic on the Company's
underwriting results, employees, and policyholders.

Going Concern—Each reporting period, the Company evaluates whether there is substantial doubt
about an entity's ability to continue as a going concern. Management was not aware of any conditions or
events that could raise substantial doubts concerning the entity's ability to continue as a going concern as
of December 31, 2020.

Subsequent Events—The Company evaluates events occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date to
determine whether recognition or disclosure in the financial statements is required. If conditions of a
subsequent event were to exist as of the balance sheet date, depending on materiality, the effects may be
required to be recognized and disclosed in the financial statements. If conditions of a subsequent event
arose after the balance sheet date, the effects are not required fo be recognized in the financial
statemenrds; however, they may need to be disclosed in the financial statements depending on materiality,

Accordingly, we have evaluated the effects of events subsequent to the balance sheet date of December
31, 2020, and through April 26, 2021, which is the date the statutory basis financial statements were
available to be issued. We noted no events or transactions that would require recognition or disclosure in
the statutory basis financial statements.
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Accounting Pronouncements Adopted in the Current Year

Amended Effect on the statutory-basis
Standard Description Effective date financial statements
SSAP No. 61R - In December 2019, the NAIC revised  This standard The adoption of this standard
Life, Deposit-Type  this standard to clarify risk-transfer became effective for  did not have a material impact
and Accident and  requirements for reinsurance the Company on on the statutory-basis financial
Health contracts, requiring additional December 31, 2020. statements. Please see
Reinsurance disclosures related to the agreements updated disclosures in the
and the identification of differences Supplemental Schedule of
between U.8. GAAP and statutory Reinsurance Risks.

requirements.
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2. INVESTMENTS

Analysis of investment operations—Net investment income for the years ended December 31, 2020

and 2019, is summarized as follows:

Bonds . e
Preferréd stock-—affiliated. ... ..
Common stock—unaffiliated...
Common stock—affiliated.
Mortgage loans ...
Contractloans...........................
Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments. ..
Other invested assets
Miscellaneous investment income

Gross investmentincome. ...
Less investment expenses .

Net investment income. . .

Selected information about disposals of bonds is as follows:

Bonds:
Proceeds from sales. ... ...
Gross realized gains ... ... T
Gross realized losses. ... ...

Net gains (losses) on calls and redemptions

2020 2019
$ 183535 § 177,496
2,671 2,671
10 10
13,737 11,465
2,056 1,979
17 475 16,315
1,011 1,740
8,461 4,368
(115) {120)
226,841 215,924
40,526 39,817

3 186315 § 176,107

At December 31,

2020 2019

$ 12,189 % 10,793

2 150
(269) {195}
$ 2307 % 974

The above table includes securities called, redeemed, or otherwise disposed of as a result of a callable
feature, which resulted in the receipt of prepayment penalty and acceleration fees. These fees are
recorded as investment income at the time of the transaction and are summarized in the following table.

Prepayment Penalty and Acceleration Fees:

Number of issues (CUSIPs) called/redeemed. ... ... .

Investment income from fees. .

19

At December 31,

2020 2019

26 6
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Portfolio Composition—The cost or amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses and fair value of
bonds and preferred stock as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, are as follows:

2020
Book/Adj Cost or Gross Gross

Carrying Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Value Cost Gains Losses Value
US.government ... % 3,041 § 3041 § 171 & - § 3,212
Other government ... e B 52,913 52,913 2,635 (898) 54,6850
Mortgage-backed securities.............. ... .. 23 23 1 - 24
U.S. states, territories, and possessions. . . 2,833 2,833 439 _ 3,272
U.S. political subdivisions................ ... 89,001 89,001 6,284 (24) 95,261
U.S. special revenues.. e e 208,362 208,362 28,402 (57) 238,707
Industrial and miscellaneous e 3,270,734 3,210,734 763,383 (5,084) 3,969,033
Asset-backed securifies. ... ... R 24,844 24,844 a08 {727 24,925
Mybrid securities... ... ... ... . 126,599 126,599 31,524 (2,1867) 155,956
Total bonds ..o 83,718,350 $3,718,350 § 833,647 $  (8,957) $4.543.040
Common stock—unaffiliated.. .. ... ... § 1,138 § 82 % 1,056 $ — 3 1,138

2019
Book/Adj Cost or Gross Gross

Carrying Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Value Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. government.. ... ... .. " $ 3,030 §$ 3,030 § 7 % — 3 3,037
Other government. ... ... 25,874 25,874 2,073 (396} 27,551
Morigage-backed securities . ... ... . 40 40 2 — 42
U.S. states, territories, and possessions.... .. 2.321 2,321 204 —_— 2,615
.S, political subdivisions.... ... ., 62,903 62,903 3,696 {3) 66,590
U.S. special revenues. . ... ... .. 187,308 187,308 17,481 (12) 204,777
Industrial and miscellaneous. ... ...... . 3,066,587 3,066,587 455,257 (15,865} 3,505,979
Assel-backed securities . . . ... . ... 29,226 29,226 1,013 (74) 30,165
Hybrid securities...................... ... 125,088 125,088 24,269 (1,318) 148,039
Totalbonds. ...................... . $3,502,377 $3.502,377 § 504,092 $ (17,674} $3,988,795
Common stock—unaffiliated.. . - $ 897 & 82 % 8i5 § — % 897

The amortized cost of bonds at December 31, 2020 and 2018 includes adjustments for those securities
that are other-than-temporarily impaired, if any. The book/adjusted carrying value includes additional
adjustments for lower rated securities stated at the lower of amortized cost or fair value. At December 31,
2020 and 2019, the Company did not have any bonds with nonadmitted amounts.
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Bonds by Confractual Maturity—The book/adjusted carrying value and fair value of bonds at December
31, 2020, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected and actual maturities will differ from
contractual maturities because the issuers of such bonds may have the right to call or prepay obligations
without call or prepayment penalties.

Due inone yearoriess ... .. ..

Book/Adj
Carrying Fair
Value Value

$ 7,905 § 8,031

Pue after one year through five years SRR 179,958 197,311
Due after five years throughtenyears. ... ... 431,263 513,755

Due after ten years.
Total.....

3,099,224 3,823,943
. $ 3718350 $ 4.543.040

Other-than-temporary impairments—During 2020, the Company wrote down two corporate bonds, with
a combined book value of $10,450 to fair value due to an other-than-temporary impairment, which
resulted in a realized loss of $9,318. As of December 31, 2019, the combined fair value of these bonds
was $5,747. During 2019, the Company did not write down any individual security holdings to fair value as
a result of other-than-temporary impairment.

Unrealized loss analysis—The following tables disclose unrealized investment losses by class of
investment at December 31, 2020 and 2019. The Company considers these investments to be only

temporarily impaired.,

Description of Securities
Bonds:

Other government. ... .

U.S. pelitical subdivisians....
U.S. special revenues. .. ... ..
Industrial and miscellaneous .
Asset-backed securities
Hybrid securities. ...

Total unrealized losses.

Analysis of Gross Unrealized Investment Losses
At December 31, 2020

Less than Twelve Twelve Months
Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
$ 19532 § (898) § — § — § 19,532 § (898)
4,039 (24) — — 4,039 {24)
4,297 (57) — — 4,297 (57}
42,372 (979) 35,566 (4,105} 77,938 (5,084}
4,643 (182) 2,245 (545} 6.888 (727}
— — 6,333 (2,167) 5,333 (2,167)

. $ 74883 § (2.140) § 44,144 (6,817} $ 118,027 (8,957}
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Analysis of Gross Unrealized Investment Losses
At December 31, 2019

Less than Twelve Twelve Months
Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Vajue Loss Value Loss Value Loss
Bonds:
Other government............. § 6,496 % (396) § — % — § 649 $ (396)
U.S. political subdivisions . 1,372 (%) — — 1,372 (%)
U.S. special revenues. ... 1,316 (12) —_ e 1,316 (12}
Industrial and miscellaneous. .. 08,464 (1,451) 83,810 (14,414) 182,274 (15,865)
Asset-backed securities......... — - 2,776 (74) 2,776 (74)
Hybrid securities.. ... : — —_ 7,183 {1,318) 7,183 (1,318}
Total unrealized losses. ... .. § 107648 $ (1,868) $ 93769 § (15.806) $ 201417 § (17,674)

At December 31, 2020, the Company held 36 issues (CUSIPs) that had been in an unrealized loss
position less than 12 months, and 7 issues that had been in an unrealized loss position 12 months or

longer. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company's entire bond and equity portfolio consisted of 935
and 722 issues, respectively.

The following table discloses loan-backed and other structured securities that have an unrealized loss as
of December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Less than Tweilve Months Twelve Months or Longer

Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss
4643 % (182) % 2,245 § (545)
— p— 2,776 (74)

Pledged Assets—The Company had cash and bonds with book/adjusted carrying values of $472,560
and $389,375 on deposit with various state insurance and governmental regulatory agencies as required
by law at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Cash Equivalents—-The Company participates in overnight reverse repurchase agreements in which an
unaffiliated authorized broker purchases securities and then resells the next day. As of December 31,

2020 and 2019 respectively, the Company had $0 and $5,100 in overnight reverse repurchase
agreements which were collateralized by the following:

Fair Value
with
Accrued
2020 CUSIP Maturity Coupon Par Value Interest
N/A . . e — —_ —% $ — & —
2019
Federal Farm Credit Bank . .. 31331XT85 08/03/2037 6% $ 3644 % 5,202

L)
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Commercial mortgage loans—The Company invests in commercial mortgage loan participations. The
portfolio consists of participations in transitional real estate loans with three to five year maturities that are
originated and serviced by a third-party manager who also performs credit monitoring and impairment
analysis of the loans. The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure o any individual
borrower. During 2020, the Company did not invest in any new commercial mortgage loans.

The commercial martgage loan portfolio is invested in a variety of commercial property types located in
the United States. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the distribution of the portfolio by property type

and geographic location was as follows:

Property type:
Office
Hospitality .......... ...
Multi-family
Mixed use..
Retail . .. .. .
Total recorded investment
Less valuation allowance
Carrying value, net of valuation allowance

Geographic location:
Pacific.. .. R
West South Central.... .
East South Central ...
South Atlantic. ...
Middle Atlantic.
New England... . ..
Total recorded investment............... ..
Less valuation allowance

Carrying value, net of valuation aliowance.....

2020 2019
Carrying Carrying
Value % of Total Value % of Total
$ 5,070 17 % % 11,762 2%
6,524 22 % 6,316 17 %
5,419 18 % 6,376 17 %
8,479 29 % 8,424 23 %
4,278 14 % 4,124 11 %
b 29,770 100% $ 37,002 100 %
..... 3 29,770 100% $ 37,002 100 %
2020 2019
Carrying Carrying
Value % of Total Value % of Total
$ 4,278 14% § 4,124 11 %
3,127 11 % 2,933 8%
4,707 16 % 4,676 13 %
12,089 41 % 18,098 49 %
5,669 19 % 5,535 15 %
— — % 1,636 4%
3 29,770 100% $ 37,002 100 %
$ 29,770 100% & 37,002 100 %
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The following table contains the risk categories of the loan portfolic. Loans are rated from CM1 (highest
quality) to CM7 (in process of foreclosure). The factors that contribute to the CM category include the
sector type, the loan to value ratio (LTV), the debt service coverage ratio (DSC), whether the loan is a
construction loan, and if the loan has cash reserves. These loans, originated in 2018 to 2019, are
transitional or under construction, and may not yet be income producing.

2020 2019
Carrying Number of  Carrying Number of
Value Loans Value Loans
Risk categories:
CM2 8 9,777 2 % 24309 6
CM3 . 10,297 3 12,693
ChM4 . . TR 6,075 2 — —
CMT 3,621 1 — —
Carrying value, net of valuation allowance. ... . . ... § 29770 8 § 37,002 10

During 2020, the Company had two commercial mortgage loans with an other-than-temporary impairment
resulting in a realized loss of $1,278. The carrying value of these loans at December 31, 2020 was
$7,899. The Company did not write down any loan in 2019 as a result of an other-than-temporary
impairment. An analysis of the impaired securities as of December 31, 2020 and 2013 is as follows:

2020 2019
Carrying Realized Numberof Carrying Realized Number of
Value l.oss Loans Value Loss Loans
Other<than<temporary impairment....
In process of foreclosure. ... $ 3621 % (1,002 1 % — § — —
Restructured loan ... ... ... . 4,278 (276) 1 —_ — —
Carrying value. . U $ 7899 § (1,278) 2 % — 3 — —

Commercial — All Other

2020 2019
Investment in impaired loans.............. TSP ORORTURSN
Average recorded investment. . B .8 3,950 —
Interest income recognized. ... 241 —_
Recorded investment on nonaccrual status . . U . 7,899 —_
Amount of interest income recognized on a cash-basis........... .. ... . 241 —

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had one maortgage locan with a carrying value of $3,621 that was
over 180 days past due and in process of foreclosure. The Company did not have any additional
mortgage loans past due as of December 31, 2020 or any mortgage loans past due as of December 31,
2018, The Company did not have any taxes, assessments, or advances that were not included in the
mortgage loan total.

During 2020, the Company reduced the interest rate on one mortgage loan from 4.41% to 0%. In 2019,
the Company did not reduce interest rates on any mortgage loans.
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Other Invested Assets—Other invested assets include surplus notes with an amortized cost of $75,261
and a fair value of $86,875 as of December 31, 2020. All of the Company's surplus notes were rated
NAIC 1-2, For this reason, the notes were reported at amortized cost, resulting in no related unrealized
losses as of December 31, 2020. Additionally, the Company has other limited parinerships, which are
presented in the following table:

As of December 31,

Unfunded
Carrying Value Commitments
Investment Category 2020 2019 2020 Redemption Term/Notice

Portion non-redeemable and fully
redeemable aiter 6 month period, subject
to fund liquidity/discretion of General
Commercial mortgage Partner. Expected life is 7 years for non-
ST 54,492 $§ 6275 § 68,469 redeemable fund.

loans. ...
Initia! 2-year lock on each new
investment; semi-annual  withdrawals
thereafter; full redemption within 36-

Opportunistic credit . 23,988 24,288 — month period.
Not redeemable. Expectled life is

Other . .. ... ... . . 120 62 34,928 approximately 12 years.

Total. . ... % 78600 $ 308625 § 103,397

Affiliated Investments—As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had the following
subsidiaries:

Subsidiary Net
Ownership Carrying Valua!” Subsidiary Assets Income

%o 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

National Income Life

Insurance Company
{National Income). .......... 100% $ 39129 § 40,517 $343,962 $305911 § 14,871 $ 13,737

American Income
Marketing Services
(AIMS) 100% $ 1203 $ 1,203 § — % — % - 8 -

(1) The Company's carrying value is presented as the following: National Income at statutory-basis equity and AIMS at its
GAAP-basis equity.

National Income declared and paid dividends on its common stock to the Company in the amount of
$13,737 and $11,465 during 2020 and 2019, respectively. The Company recorded these amounts in net
investment income.

Concentrations of Credit Risk—The financial instruments that subject the Company to concentrations
of potential credit risk are primarily bonds, equity securities, short-term investments, and cash on deposit,
Such instruments include investments in commercial paper of companies with high credit ratings,
investments in money market securities, and investments in securities backed by the United States
Government. The Company limits the amount of credit exposure with any one financial issuer or
institution and believes that no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to the porticlio.

25



AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTES TO STATUTORY-BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
{Dollar amounts in thousands except for shares)

The Company maintains a diversified investment portfolio with limited concentration in any one issuer.

The following table presents the distribution of the portfolio as of December 31, 2020, based on admitted
value:

Admitted
Value
investment-grade corporate securities. ... . . . OO U O UTOUP RPN 72 %
Municipal bonds ... .. ST PRSPPI . . 7 %
Contractloans............ ... .. .. . ... . R R TRTT 5%
Below-investment grade securities ... ... ... S 5%
Otherinvestedassets.......... ... ... ... .. ... ... BT e 5%
Affiliated stock . OO U ST o 2%
Other governments........... ... . ... o o _ e 1%
Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments... ... ... 1%
Morigage loans.. ............... e IR e o 1%
Loan-backed and other structured securities, other bonds, real estate and non-affiliated equities... . 1%
Total ... .. TP U PSP USRI . . 100 %

Excluding investments in affiliates, the Company's largest exposure to a single issuer of debt and equity
securities was Telus Corp, which represented 1.6% of cash and invested assets.

Municipal bond investments are made in various states with 19% of the municipal bonds invested in the
state of Texas. Corporate debt and equity investments are made in a wide range of industries. At
December 31, 2020, the top ten industry concentrations, based on admitted value, were as follows:

Admitted
Value
INSUPAINGE. ... 13 %
Electric utilites. ... ... . L SRR PR PRRTUO 10 %
Banks. . e . B %
Pipelines....................... . L . . . S PO PRI 6 %
Telecommunications. : . U TP USRS TP : o 59
Chemicals................ e . B PSPPI 4 %
Transportation. .. o SO PO PP PP 4 %
Real estate investmenttrusts. ... B S e 4 %
Energy exploration and production.. e TSV PTTNTROR 4 %
Food. .. ... .. T O U OSSP PO : SR 4 %

At December 31, 2020, 5% of cash and invested assets were represented by bonds rated below
investment grade by the NAIC (NAIC designations 3-6). Par value of these investments was $216,124,
book/adjusted carrying value {or admitted value) was $218,978, and fair value was $235,795. Included in
these said investments are below investment grade loan-backed and other structured securities with a
book/adjusted carrying vaiue of $2,790. While these investments could be subject to additional credit risk,
such risk should generally be reflected in fair value,
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3. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Investments Measured at Fair Value—The following tables summarize the investments measured and
reported at fair value as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2020 Using:

Quoted
Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
{dentical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs Net Asset Total
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3) Value (NAV) Fair Value
Common stock—industrial and
miscellaneous.................. § -— § —_— 8 1,138 § — § 1,138
Cash equivalents—money
market mutual funds. . ... . — —_ — 16,124 16,124
Total AR 9% — 3 — % 1,138 § 16,124 8 17,262
Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2019 Using:
Quoted
Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs Net Asset Total
Description (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Value (NAV) Fair Value
Common stock—industrial and
miscellaneous. .. . . i 8 — 5 — % 897 3 — & 8a7
Cash equivalents—money
market mutual funds. ... .. —_— —_ — 1,973 1,873
Total. .. .. .. i & — 3 — &% 897 $ 1,973 % 2,870
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The following table represents changes in assets measured and reported at fair value using significant
unobservable inputs {Level 3):

Analysis of Changes in Fair Value Measurements Using
Significant Unobservable Inputs {Level 3)

Common
Stock

Balance at December 31, 2018.......... ... $ 1,204
Total gains or losses:

Includedinnetincome... ... ... ... —_

Includedinsurplus............. ... .. . _
Purchases. . , e . . —_
Issuances.... ... B RO —
Sales. .. ... ... SRR : (307)
Settlements/famortization. ... ... ... —
Transfers into Level 3. . G . —
TransfersoutofLevel 3. .. . . .. ... .. —_
Balance at December 31, 2019......c.oocevvecvnvienen $ 897
Total gains or losses:

Included in netincome..................... ... —_

Includedinsurplus. . ... ... . . ... . 241
Purchases. . o UV —_
Issuances........ ... .. ... : —
Sales , T RV —
Settlementsfamortization............ ... ... .. —_
Transfersinto Level 3. .. ... . . ... o
Transfers out of Level 3. BT UR TR —_
Balance at December 31, 2020..........c.....cccoveeinnnnnn. $ 1,138

Inciuded in Level 3 are common stock for which observable market data is not available.
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Fair Value Hierarchy--The following tables summarize the fair valuss of all financial instruments by level
within the fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020
Not
Practicable Net Asset
Admitted  Aggregate (Carrying Value
Type of Financial Instrument Value Fair Value  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value) (NAV)
Assets:
Bonds... .......... ... . .. $3,718,350 $4,543,040 § — $4,410,063 $132977 § - 3 —
Preferred stock—affiliated.. ... . 39,168 39,169 e — 39,169 - —
Common stock—unaffiliated .. ... 1,138 1,138 — — 1,138 — —_
Cash, cash equivalents, and
short-term investments 33,090 33,090 16,966 — — — 16,124
Contract loans™ 227,233 227,233 — — — 227,233 —
Mortgage loans® . ... ... .. 29,770 29,770 —_ — 29,770 — —
Other invested assets:
LIHTC partnership inferests. . ... 60,310 69,862 e — 69,862 — —
Surplus notes—unaffiliated 80,096 71,605 e 71,605 — o —
Surplus notes—affiliated e 15,165 15,270 -- R 15,270 — —
Total Assets:................ $4184,321 $5030,177_ $ 16,966 $4,481,668 $288,186 $ 227233 § 16,124
Liabilities:
Interest bearing deposit-type
funds. ... . .. % (88287) & (88,287} § — % (88,287) % — $ — & —
Borrowed funds—affiliated. .. .. (40,253) (40,253} — (40,253) — — —
Total Liabilities:.................... $ (128,540) $ (128,540} § — § (128,540) §$ — 8 — & —

(1)Contract loans cannot be valued separately from their associated insurance liabilities, thus making the determination of fair vaiue
not practicable.
(2)The Company invests In morlgage loans with 1 month floating rates. For this reason, the fair value approximates book value.
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2019
Not
Practicable Net Asset
Admitted  Aggregate {Carrying Value
Type of Financial Instrument Value Falr Value  Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Value) {NAV)
Assets:
Bonds. . ... ... ... . . $3,502,377 $3988,795 § - $3,858,058 $130,737 $ — —
Preferred stock—affiliated . 39,169 39,169 - — 39,169 — —
Commaon stock—unaffiliated 897 897 — — 897 — —
Cash, cash equivalents, and. . . -
short-term investments... .. 35,991 35,991 13,918 20,100 — — 1,973
Contract loans!" e 215,996 215,996 — - — 215,996
Mortgage loans® . . 37,002 37,002 — — 37,002 . —
Qther invested assets:
LIHTC partnership interests 68,639 72,500 — — 72,500 — —
Surplus notes—unaffiliated. . ... 50,075 56,651 — 56,651 — - —
Surplus notes—affiliated. . . . 15,168 15,150 — — 15,150 —_ —
Total assets....................... e $3,965,314 4,462,151 § 13,918 $3,934,809 $205455 § 215996 $ 1,973
Liabilities:
Interest bearing deposit-type
funds ... $ (87.385) § (87,385 $ — § (87,385) % — § - § —
Borrowed funds—afiiliated ... (277) (277} — (277) — — —
Total liabilities................ ... $ {87,662) $ (87,662) $ — § (87.662) § — 8 — & —

(1)Contract loans cannot be valued separately from their associaled insurance liabilifies, thus making the determination of fair value
not practicable.
{2)The Company invests in mortgage loans with 1 month floating rates. For this reascn, the fair value approximates book value.

The Company invests in a portfolio of private placement bonds that is managed by a third party.
Amortized cost of these bonds was $108,801 and $112,150 as of December 31, 2020 and 2018,
respectively. The fair value of those classified as Level 2 was $10,266 and $10,105 and those classified
as Level 3 was $110,823 and $107,462 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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- 4. FUTURE POLICY BENEFITS AND REINSURANCE

Reserves for Life Contracts and Deposit-Type Contracts

The Company waives deduction of deferred fractional premiums upon death of the insured and
returns any modal premium paid beyond the date of death, Surrender values are not promised in
excess of the legally computed reserves.

Extra premiums are charges for substandard lives plus the gross premium for a rate age or plus
the gross premium for the true age. Mean reserves are determined by computing the regular
mean reserve for the plan and in addition, one-half for the extra premium charge for the year for
traditional products.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had insurance in force of $417,698 and
$438,806, for which a premium deficiency reserve of $3,576 and $3,572, respectively, was
recorded.

The tabular interest, tabular less actual reserves released, and tabular costs have been
determined by formula as prescribed in the NAIC Annual Statement Instructions.

For the determination of tabular interest on funds not involving life contingencies for each
valuation rate of interest, the tabular interest is calculated as one hundredth of the product of
such valuation rate of interest multiplied by the mean of the amount of funds subject to such
valuation rate of interest held at the beginning and end of the year of valuation.

Analysis of Annuity Actuarial Reserves and Deposit Liabilities by Withdrawal Characteristics—The
amount of annuity actuarial reserves and deposit-type contract funds and other liabilities without life or
disability contingencies as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Individual Annuities: 2020 2019
Subject to discretionary withdrawal;
At book value less current surrender charge of 5% or more TR 209 % 3,940
At book value without adjustment . . . 226,377 231,499
Total subject to discretionary withdrawal................... . . TR 226,586 235,439
Not subject to discretionary withdrawal................ . .. .. U 568 632
Total QroSS. ..o . R 227,154 236,071

Reinsuranceceded .. . ... ... ... . SR ETRO R RUUUPRRRPEPU — —

Totalnet .. .. ... o . . . $§ 227154 § 236,071

Amount with current surrender charge of 5% or more in 2020 that will have less than
a 5% surrender charge for the first time within 2021 $ 145 1,175
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Deposit-Type Contracts: 2020 2019
Subject to discretionary withdrawal:
At book value less current surrender charge of 5% ormore. ... ... . RO — 5 —_
At book value without adjustment .. . . o ISR 88,287 87,385
Total subject to discretionary withdrawal... ... ... . . . 88,287 87,385
Not subject to discretionary withdrawal . R RO o —
Total gross . SO S PPN U SRRV TR 88,287 87,385
Reinsurance ceded.. . ... ... .. ... ... —_ —
Total net. .. : R S USRS $ 88,287 § 87,385

Amount with current surrender charge of 5% or more in 2020 that will have less than
a 5% surrender charge for the first time within 2021 $ — % —

The following information is obtained from the annual statement, which is filed with the Department. it is
provided to reconcile annuity reserves, deposit-type contract funds, and cther liabilities with life or
disability contingencies to amounts reported in the statutory-basis statements of admitted assets,
liabilities, and capital and surplus. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, these amounts were as follows:

2020 2019
Life and accident and health annual statement:
Exhibit 5—~annuities section—total (net).... ... ... ... ... . . o ... § 22708 § 235997
Exhibit 5—supplementary contracts with life contingencies section—total {net}.... ... 69 75
Exhibit of deposit-type contracts—column 1, line 14 ... . . ... . . 88,287 87,385
Total.... R .. $ 315441 $§ 323,457

Analysis of Life Actuarial Reserves by Withdrawal Characteristics—The amount of life actuarial
reserves as of December 31, 2020 and 2018, were as follows:

Cash Value Reserve
2020 2019 2020 2019
Subject to discretionary withdrawal:

Term policies with cash value . ... . . . e B 3.2i2 % 3,870 § 71438 § 71,179
Other permanent cash value life. . TP R 2,505,923 2,288,962 3,615,583 3,320,917

Not subject to discretionary withdrawal or no cash values:
Term policies with cash value . T — — 38,369 38,254
Accidental death benefits. ... .. ... ... .. .. —_— — 52,427 46,650
Disability—active lives . NN — s 25,842 23,568
Disability—disabled lives. ... ... ... . ... . .. — — 18,764 17,370
Miscellaneous reserves.. . .. ... .. . e - — 33,936 33,338
Total gross o T 2,509,135 2,292,832 3,856,359 3,551,276
Reinsurance ceded ... ... .. . (166,939) (112,057) (353,814) (264,836)
Total net...... . B e $2342196 $ 2,180,775 $ 3,502,545 § 3,286,380
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The following information as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 is provided to reconcile life reserves to
amounts reported in the statutory-basis statements of admitted assets, liabilities, and capital and surplus:

2020 2019
Life and accident and health annual statement:

Exhibit 5—ife insurance section—total (net)... ... ... ... $ 3,396,960 % 3,186,118
Exhibit 5—accidental death benefits section—total (net) . TR 39,797 36,606
Exhibit 5--disability - active lives section—total (net}................ TR 19,772 18,735
Exhibit 5—disability - disabled lives section—total (net} PR 18,764 17,370
Exhibit 5——miscelianeous reserves section—total (net). ... ... ... . .. 27,252 27,551

Total . SRR UP PP PP , e o $ 3,802,545 § 3,286,380

Change in Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses—The activity in the liability for policy and
contract claims for accident and health policies for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, is
summarized as follows:

2020 2019
Balance at January 1—net of reinsurance recoverables... . ... . ... . . $ 16,767 § 16,017
Incurred related fo:
Current year. ... SRR U 26,305 25,542
PROF YBAIS. . i (3,309) (3,037)
Totalincurred. ... TP 22,998 22,505
Paid related to:
Currentyear.... ... SUUURU TR UU NPT ST 12,702 12,690
Prioryears. . ... ... e 8,232 9,065
Totalpaid.... ... ... ... SO 21,934 21,755
Balance at December 31--net of reinsurance recoverables i B 17,829 § 168,767

At the end of each vear, the liability for unpaid health claims includes an estimate of claims incurred but
not yet reported to the Company. Such estimates are updated regularly based upon the Company's most
recent claims data with recognition of emerging experience trends. Due to the nature of the Company's
health business, the payment lags are relatively short and most claims are fully paid within a year from
the time incurred. Fluctuations in claims experience can [ead to either over or under estimation of the
liability for any given year.

The balance in the liability for unpaid accident and health claim adjustment expenses as of December 31,
2020 and December 31, 2019 was $445 and $419, respectively.

Reinsurance Assumed and Ceded—The Company reinsures the portion of insurance risk in excess of
its retention limits to both affiliated and unaffiliated companies. The Company also assumes certain
insurance risks of both affiliated and unaffiliated companies. The aggregate reserves for future policy
benefits, unearned premiums, policy and contract claims, premiums, and benefits are reported after
adding or deducting amounts related to reinsurance assumed or ceded.
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The Company has reinsured portions of certain life insurance policies that it underwrites to limit certain
risks. The Company retains varying amounts of individual insurance up to a maximum retention, and this
retention limit may have changed in the past as these limits are not static aver long periods of time. The
Company is not relieved of its primary obligations to the policyholders and is therefore contingently liable
in the event that assuming reinsurers are unable o meet their obligations.

The amounts related to relnsurance assumed and ceded as of and for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, are shown below:

2020 2019
Affiliated  Unaffiliated Affiliated Unaffiliated

Assumed:

Aggregate reserves for future policy benefits.. .. ... . § 226,948 § -~ § 235856 § —
Policy and contract claimsunpaid............ ... ... . % 5219 § — $ 6484 § —
Premiums. ... . 3 6283 % — $ 4807 § —
Incurred benefits .. . ... . .. % 22204 B — $ 30440 % —
Commissions and reinsurance expense allowances. .. 3 148 § — 3 136§ —
Reserve adjustment... $ — — 5 — % —
Ceded:

Aggregate reserves for future policy benefits ... $ 353,708 § 107 & 264,787 & 109
Premiums ... .. B T $ 359,308 % 126 § 305034 115
Reserve adjustments.. . B .5 5017 § — $ 5830 § o
Incurred benefits.......... .. .. , c. § 45236 § — § 31369 § —
Premiumtiaxes . . . .. . ... ... ... % 8142 % — § 6994 % —
Commissions and reinsurance expense allowances $ 219484 3 — §$192,089 § —

A contingent liability exists with respect to deductions from the aggregate reserves for future policy
benefits, policy and contract claims, and unearned premiums, which would become a liability in the event
that such reinsurance companies are unable to meet their obligations under the existing reinsurance
agreements.
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Ceded Reinsurance Report

Section 1—General interrogatories

.

Section

Section

Are any of the reinsurers, listed in Schedule S as nonaffiliated, owned in excess of 10% or
controlled, either directly or indirectly, by the Company or by any representative, officer, frustee,
or director of the Company?

Yes () No (X)

Have any of the policies issued by the Company been reinsured with a company chartered in a
country other than the United States (excluding U.S. Branches of such companies) which is
owned in excess of 10% or controlled directly or indirectly by an insured, a beneficiary, a creditor
or an insured or any other person not primarily engaged in insurance business?

Yes () No (X)
2—Ceded Reinsurance Report—Part A

Does the Company have any reinsurance agreements in effect under which the reinsurer may
unilaterally cancel any reinsurance for reasons other than for nonpayment of premium or other
similar credits?

Yes { ) No (X)
Does the Company have any reinsurance agreements in effect such that the amount of losses
paid or accrued through the statement date may result in payment to the reinsurer of amounts

which, in aggregate and allowing for offset of mutual credits from other reinsurance agreements
with the same reinsurer, exceed the total direct premium collected under the reinsured policies?

Yes { ) No (X)

3—Ceded Reinsurance Report—Part B

What is the estimated amount of the aggregate reduction in surplus, for agreements, not reflected
in Section 2 above, of termination of all reinsurance agreements, by either party, as of the date of
this statement? Where necessary, the Company may consider the current or anticipated
experience of the business reinsured in making the estimate.

$35,376

Have any new agreements been executed or existing agreements amended, since January 1 of
the year of this statement, to include policies and contracts which were in-force or which had

existing reserves established by the Company as of the effective date of the agreement?

Yes { ) No (X)
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5. PREMIUM AND ANNUITY CONSIDERATIONS DEFERRED AND UNCOLLECTED

Deferred and uncollected life and health insurance premiums and annuity considerations as of December

31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

2020 2019

Net of Net of

Gross Loading Loading Gross Loading Loading
Ordinary life new business............ § 15757 § (8639) § 7118 $ 15274 $ (8598) % 6,676
Ordinary life renewal ... .. 379,045 (153,090) 225,955 396,279 (161,101) 235,178
Groupfife .. ... .. . ... 766 (287) 479 796 {296) 500
Assumed annuity-renewal. . ... ... 1,806 —_ 1,806 1,227 — 1,227
Ceded life—new business. .. ... . (7,183) 3,905 (3.278) {6,835) 3,807 (3,028)
Ceded life—renewal ... ... .. . (82,716) 36,173 (46,543) (85,623) 37,876 (47,747)
Total...cooo i, RN $ 307475 9§ (121,938) § 185537 § 321118 § (128,312) § 192,806
Nonadmitted (greater than 90 days) — —
Total admitted.......... ... $ 185,537 $ 182,806

The Company had no direct written premiums from managing general agents in 2020 or 2019.
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INCOME TAXES

A. Net Deferred Tax Asset/Liability

The components of the net deferred tax asset/(liability) at December 31 are as follows:

(a)
{v)
)
()
(&)
®

@

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 Change

Ordinary Capital Total Ordinary Capital Total Qrdinary Capital Total
Gross deferred tax
assels 5195561 $ 6,108 $ 201,669 % 185908 % 3,287 § 190195 § 8653 § 2821 § 11474
Statutery valuation
allowance adjustments — — — — — m — — —
Ad%'usted Grass
defarrad tax assels 195,561 6,108 201,669 186,908 3,287 790,195 B,653 2,821 11,474
Deferred tax assets
nonadmitted — 4,869 4,869 — — — — 4,869 4,869
Subtotal net admitted
deferred tax asset 195,561 1,239 196,800 188,908 3,287 190,195 8,653 {2,048) 6,605
Deferred tax liabilities 167,130 1,200 168,330 163,842 919 164,761 3,288 281 3,569
Net admitted deferred
tax asset {(net deferred
tax liability) § 28431 $ 39 § 28470 § 23066 §$ 2368 § 25434 § 5365 § {2329) 8§ 3,036

The Company has not established a statutory valuation allowance in determining its adjusted gross
deferred tax assets as management believes that it is mare likely than not that all of its gross deferred tax
assets will be realized.

2. The amount of admitted adjusted gross deferred tax assets under each component of SSAP No. 101
are presented below.

Admissicn Calculation Components SSAP No. 101
{a) Federal income taxes paid in prior years
recoverable through loss carrybacks.. ...

(b} Adjusted gross deferred tax assets expected to be realized

{(excluding the amount of deferred tax assets from 2(a)
above) after application of the threshold limitation

(The lesser of 2{b)1 and 2(b)2 below).

1. Adjusted gross deferred tax assets expected to be
realized following the balance sheetdate. ... ... ... ...

2. Adjusted gross deferred tax assets

allowed per limitation threshold. ..

(c) Adjusted gross deferred tax assets (excluding the amount

of deferred tax assets from 2(a) and 2{b) above}
offset by gross deferred tax liabilities.................

{d) Deferred tax assets admitted as the result of application
of SSAP No. 101. Total {(2(a) + 2(b) + 2{(c))... ..
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-8 — 5 39 $ 38
- 39,859 § — 5 39,859
.8 39,859 § — 5 39,859
XXX XXX § 46,197
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$ 195561 3 1,239 § 196,800




AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
NQTES TO STATUTORY-BASIS FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
{Dollar amounts in thousands except for shares)

December 31, 2019

Ordinary Capital

Total

Admission Calculation Components SSAP No, 101
(a) Federal income taxes paid in prior years
recoverable through loss carrybacks, . ... . . .. 8 — § —_

(b) Adjusted gross deferred tax assets expected to be realized
{excluding the amount of deferred tax assets from 2(a)
above) after application of the threshold limitation
{The lesser of 2(b)1 and 2(b)2 below). L ... & 38,271 § 3,243 §

41514

1. Adjusted gross deferred tax assets expected to be
realized following the balance sheet date. e B 38,271 § 3,243 §
2. Adjusted gross deferred tax assets
allowed per limitation threshold. . . SR XXX XXX §

(c) Adjusted gross deferred tax assets {excluding the amount
of deferred tax assets from 2(a) and 2(b) above)
offset by gross deferred tax liabilities.... ... ... ... i % 148837 % 44 3

41,514

41,514

148,681

(d) Deferred tax assets admitted as the result of application
of SSAP No. 101. Total (2(a)+2(bY+2(¢)).... ................ & 186,908 $ 3,287 &

180,195

Change

Ordinary Capital

Total

Admission Calculation Components SSAP No. 101
(a) Federal income taxes paid in prior years
recoverable through loss carrybacks. R . % — 8 39 %

33

(b} Adjusted gross deferred tax assets expected to be realized
(excluding the amount of deferred tax assets from 2(a)
above) after application of the threshold limitation
(The lesser of 2(b)1 and 2(b)2 below). . - § 1,588 § {3,243) $

{1,655)

1. Adjusted gross deferred tax assets expected to be

realized following the balance sheet date. .. $ 1,588 § (3,243) §
2. Adjusted gross deferred tax assets

allowed per limitation threshold, ... ... .. , XXX XXX §

(c) Adjusted gross deferred tax assets (excluding the amount
of deferred tax assets from 2(a) and 2(b) above)
offset by gross deferred tax liabilities.. ... ... § 7065 % 1,156 §

{1,655)

4,683

8,221

(d} Deferred tax assets admitted as the result of application
of SSAP No. 101, Total (2(a} + 2(b}+2(c)).... ... ... . ... § 8653 § (2,048) $

6,605
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3. The following table discloses the calculations for recovery period and threshold fimitations.

2020 2019
Ratio percentage used to determine recovery period and threshold limitation
(a) amount.. . . . 579 % 642 %
Amount of adjusted capital and surpius used to determine recovery perlod and
(b) threshold imitation . . ... e § 351010 § 363,922
4. The following table discloses the impact of tax planning strategies:
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 Change
Ordinary Capital Ordinary Capital Ordinary Capital
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent

Determination of adjusted gross

deferred tax assets and net admitted

deferred tax assets, by tax character as
(a) a percentage.

1. Adjusted gross DTAs amount from
Note 6AT(e)...... ... ... .. $195,561 $ 6,108 $186,908 $ 3.287 § 8,853 $ 2821

2. Percentage of adjusted gross DTAs
by tax character attributable to the
impact of tax planning strategies — % — % — % % — % — %

3. Net admitted adjusted gross DTAs
amount from Note 6A%(e).. ... $195,561 § 1,238 $186,908 $ 3287 $ 868583 § (2,048)

4. Percentage of net admitted

adjusted gross DTAs by tax character

admitted because of the |mpact of {ax

planning strategies............. — % — % e %o 100 % — % (100)%

Does the Company’s tax planning
strategies include the use of
(b)Y reinsurance? No

B. Temporary Differences
There are no temporary differences for which deferred tax liabilities are not recognized.
C. Deferred Income Taxes

The change in deferred income taxes reported in surplus before consideration of nonadmitted asset is
comprised of the following components:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 Change

Ordinary Capital Total Ordinary Capital Total Ordinary Capital Total
Net deferred tax asset
(liability) $ 28431 5 4908 § 33339 § 23086 $ 2368 § 25434 § 5365 $ 2540 § 7,905
Tax-effect of unrealized
gains and [osses . . . (7.676) (764) (8,440} (6,838) (613) (7.451%) (838) {151) (989)
Tax-effect of other surplus
gains and [osses ... . .. — — — e — — — — o
Net tax-effect without
unrealized gains and losses
and prior period
adjustments .. ... .8 38107 § 5672 S 41779 § 20804 $ 2981 $ 32885 § 6203 $ 2691 § 85894
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D. Current income taxes incurred consist of the following major components:

1. Current income tax:

December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019 Change

a. Federal.. $ 34,332 % 37,240 § (2,908)
b.Forelgn ... ... ... — — —

c. Subtotal 34,332 37,240 (2,908)
d, Federal income tax on net cap:tal gains (Iosses) {572) 1,040 (1.612)
e, Utilization of capital loss carryforwards..... .. ... .. . — — —
f. Other. . R —_ — —_
g. Federal and fore:gn income taxes mcurred $ 33,760 % 38,280 § (4,520)

2. The tax effects of temporary differences that glve rise to significant portions of the deferred fax assets

are presented below:

December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019 Change
(a) Ordinary
(1) Policyholder reserves..... .. . . 93,035 83,435 {400)
(2) Investments.. . .. . — 172 {172)
(3) Deferred acquisition costs 91,552 82,293 9,259
(4) Policyholder dividends accrual. s 2 3 (1)
(5) Fixed assets... y . 304 1,491 (1,187)
(6) Compensation and benef ts accrual 305 263 42
(7) Pensionaccrual.. ... ... ... — — —
(8) Receivables — nonadmitted —_— — —
(9) Net operating loss carry-forward . - — —
(10) Tax credit carry-forward. ... ... ... ... — — -
(11} Unrealized gains (Iosses) ......... S 4,355 3425 930
(12) Unrealized gains (loss) on foreign exchange N — —_ —_
{13) Other {including items <5% of total ordinary tax assets). 6,008 5,826 182
(99) Subtotal 195,561 186,908 8,653
(b) Statutory valuation allowance adjustment . - — _—
(c) Nonadmitted... TP — — —
(d) Admitted ordinary deferred tax assets (2399 2b-2c). 195,561 186,908 8,653
{e) Capital:
(1) Investments. .. . 8,007 3,243 2,764
(2) Net capital loss carry- forward ..... — — —
{3) Real estate o — — —
(4) Other (including items <5% of total capxtal tax assets) ......... 101 44 57
{99) Subtotal .. . 6,108 3,287 2,821
(f) Statutory valuation allowance adjustment — — —
(g) Nonadmitted U 4,869 — 4,869
(h) Admitted capital deferred tax assets (2299 - 2f - 2g). . 1,239 3,287 (2,048)
(i) Admitted deferred tax assets (2d + 2b)...... . $ 196,800 % 190,195 § 6,605
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3. The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax liabilities
are presented below:

(@)

(b)

()

Qrdinary

{1} Investments .

(2) Fixed assets .. ..

(3) Deferred and unco!lected premium

(4} Policyholder reserves

{5) Deferred compensation................ ..
{6} Agent advances ..

{7} Unrealized gains (loss) on foreign exchange..........

(8) Other {including items <5% of total ordinary tax liabilities)..

{99) Subtetal..................

Capital:

{1) Investments.

(2) Real estate... e

(3) Unrealized gains (Iosses) BT
(

4) Other {including items <5% of total capltal tax Ilab|ht|es) A
{99) Subtotal ...

Deferred tax liabilities (3299 + 3b99). ... ..

Net deferred tax assets/liabilities (21 - 3¢})..

41

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019 Change
$ 741 % 836 § {95}
38,584 40,232 (1,648)
22,758 27,372 (4,614)

92,461 84,626 7,835

12,031 10,263 1,768

555 513 42

167,130 163,842 3,288

335 262 73

865 657 208

1,200 919 281

168,330 164,761 3,569

$ 28470 % 25434 $ 3,036
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E. Book to Tax adjustments

Among the mare significant book to tax adjustments were the following:

December 31,
2020 2019 Change
(1) Current income taxes incurred.. ... ... . . $33,760 $ 38,280 3 (4,520)
(2) Change in deferred income tax {without tax on unrealized gains
and losses and surplus adjustments) SO O PO PR (8,894) (10,453) 1,559
(3) Totalincometaxreported...................... ... . . $ 24,866 $ 27,827 3 (2,961)

{4) Net gain from operations before federal income tax and realized gains  $228,264  $236,304 § (8,040)

Realized capital gains (losses) before federal income tax, after transfer

(5) 0IMR..... (10,532) 446 (10,978)
(6) Income heforetaxes. ... ... .. ... ... 217,732 236,750 (19,018}
21 % 21 % — %
Expected income tax expense (benefit) at statutory rate. .. . . 45,724 49,717 (3,993}
(7) Increase (decrease) in actual tax reported resulting from:
a. Dividends received deduction.... ... ... ... ... (3,446) (2,969) (477}
b. Tax-exemptincome. ... ... ... ... . {957) (582} (375)
¢. Tax adjustment for IMR .. ... ... UV PP VUSRI (358) (563) 205
d. Employee stock options ... ... . e R {290) (713) 423
e Taxcredits.. ... ... PSR U OO P (15,847) (16,289) 442
f.Other... ... . 40 (774) 814
(8) Total income tax reported.. .. o S $ 24,866 $ 27,827 $ (2,961)

F. Federal Taxes

1. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company has no net operating loss or tax credit
carryforwards.

2. The amount of Federal income taxes incurred that are available for recoupment in the event of future
net losses are as follows:

2020 $ 0
2019 $ 303
2018 $ 837

3. The aggregate amount of deposits admitted under Section 6603 of the Internal Revenue Code is $0
and $0 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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G. Consolidated Federal Income Tax Return

The Company’s federal income tax return is consclidated with its ullimate parent, Globe Life Inc., as well
as its affiliated subsidiaries including: Liberty National Life Insurance Company, Globe Life Insurance
Company of New York, Family Heritage Life Insurance Company of America, Globe Life And Accident
Insurance Company, United American Insurance Company, National income Life Insurance Company,
TMK Buildings Corporation, Brown Service Funeral Homes Company. Inc., Torchmark Insurance
Agency, Inc., Specialized Advertising Group, Inc., Globe Marketing Services, Inc., AILIC Receivables
Corporation, American Income Marketing Services, Inc., Liberty National Auto Club, Inc., Globe Life
Insurance Agency, Inc., American Life and Health Group, Inc., and TMK Re, Lid.

Each company pays a share of the total {fax liability determined as if computed separately. Companies
that would report a loss are reimbursed to the extent that their losses are utilized by affiliates with taxable
income. The calculation is made pursuant to Federal Income Tax Regulation 1.1552-1(a)(2) and
1.1502-33(d}(3)(ii).

The Company's income tax returns are routinely audited by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). The
statute of limitation for the assessment of additional tax is closed for all tax years prior fo 2017.
Management believes that adequate provision has been made in the statutory-basis financial statements
for any potential assessments that may result from the completed examinations, future tax examinations,
and other tax-related matters for all open tax years.

The Company currently does not have any tax caontingencies that are required fo be recognized in
accordance with SSAP No. 5R, Liabilities, Contingencies and Impairments of Assets.

H. Repatriation Transition Tax (RTT)
The Company does not owe RTT for the year.
I. Alternative Minimum Tax (AMT) Credit

The Company had no AMT credit carryforwards as of the beginning of the year. As a result, no AMT
credits were recovered during the year or exist as of the end of the year.

J. Tax Penalties

The Company's continuing practice is fo recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters
in income tax expense. The Company recognized interest income of $0 and $1, net of federal income tax
benefits, in its statutory-basis Statement of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2018.
The Company also recognized Federal estimated tax penalties of $0 and $34 in its statutory-basis
Statement of Operations for 2020 and 2019, respectively. The Company does not have any accrued
interest receivables and/or payables relating to prior year IRS examination settlements as of December
31, 2020 and 2019. The Company had no accrued penalties as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.
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7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Benefit Pension Plans—The Company has a funded noncontributory defined benefit pfan for all
hourly employees who have completed one year of service with the Company. Certain assets of the
Company in the form of a guaranteed investment contract in the amount of $30,119 and $28,278 were
allocated in 2020 and 2019, respectively, to pay future benefits. The benefits are set as a monthly amount
for each year of service with the Company. Cost for the plan has been calculated on the projected unit
credit actuarial cost method. Contributions are made periodically to fund plan obligations. All plan
measurements are as of December 31 of the respective year.

The information about the Company's defined benefit pension plan as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, is
as follows:

2020 2019
Accumulated benefit obligation. .. . . 8 48628 § 42,231
Projected benefit obligation.. TR BT PP PSPPI 49,628 42,231
Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2020
Description for each class of plan assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Unallocated insurance contract e B — % 30,119 % — & 30,119
Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2019
Description for each class of plan assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Unallocated insurance contract........................ .. § — 5 28278 % —_ 3 28,278

The following table discloses the assumptions used to determine the Company's pension liabilities and
costs for the appropriate periods. The discount rate is used to determine projected henefit obligations and
pension expense. The discount rate is determined based on the expected duration of plan liabilities. A
yield is then derived based on the current market yield of a hypothetical portfolio of higher-quality

corporate bonds which match the lability duration. Differences between assumptions and actual
experience are included in actuarial gain or loss.

Weighted Average Pension Plan Assumptions 2020 2019
For benefit obligations — December 31 — discount rate. . . SO 3.10 % 3.61%
For pericdic benefit cost for the year:
Discount rate . VPP TP 3.61 4.33
Expect long-term rate of return..... . . SOOI 6.25 6.25
Rate of compensation increase'™.. N/A N/A
interest crediting rates for cash balance plans and other plans with prom:sed
interest crediting rates...... ... L 4.32 432

{1} The Company does not praject a benefit obligation since the benefit formula for the plan does not contain a salary compenent.
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The following table presents the components of net periodic pension cost as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, for the defined benefit pension plan:

2020 2019
Service cost. USROS . . $ 1,972 % 1,582
Interest cost PO URUURPUR 1,510 1.481
Expected refurn on assets................o o . . (1,768} (1,866)
Amortization of prior service cost o USSR 631 631
Amortization of netloss. ... . . 554 161
Net periodic benefit cost . . . 8 2899 § 2,189

The following table presents a reconciliation at December 31, 2020 and 2019, from the beginning to the
end of the year of the accumulated benefit obligation of the defined benefit pension plan:

2020 2019
Changes in benefit obligation:

Obligation—balance at January 1 . DR P . 8 42231 & 34,542
Service cost. .. . . . 1,972 1,582
Interest cost o B OO DT T PO DR U VRO TRTSIRUPEPRTROS 1,510 1,481
Actuarial (gain) loss. ....... B PSR U UP R U 4,611 5,262
Benefits paid.. . . ... ...l O VDR SI {696) (636)

Obligation—balance at December 31 .. ... .. ... .. 49,628 42,231

Changes in plan assets:

Plan assets—fair value at January 1 B PP P U TPUPTRRTURPPITOS 28,278 26,504
Returnonassets.................... ... . e 967 930
Cont U NS 1,670 1,480
Benefits paid ... : R U TR (696) {636)

Plan assets—fair value at December31.. ... ... . 30,119 28,278

Funded status at December31... ... ... . . 8 (19,509) 8 (13,953)

The portion of unassigned surplus that is expected to be reflected in pension expense in 2021 is as
follows:

Defined
Benefit Plan
Amortization of prior Service COSt . ... . . $ 631
Amortizationofnetloss...................... . BN 876
Total.. o TP B PSP U TR U PP $ 1,507
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The following fable illustrates the estimated pension benefit payments, which reflect the expected future
service that is projected to be paid:

Defined
Benefit Plan
2021 .. ISR R RPN P R BTSRRI % 913
2022 BTN IS S U 1,049
2024 S OO OO SORUURP SO SRR SRR 1,371
2025 A e PPN 1,527
2026-2030 e, 9,933

Cost for the defined benefit pension plan has been calculated on the projected unit credit actuarial cost
method. All plan measurements for the defined benefit plan are as of December 31 of the respective year.
The defined benefit pension plan covering the hourly employees is funded. Contributions are made to
fund the plan subject to minimums required by regulations and maximums allowed for tax purposes.
Defined benefit plan contributions were $1,570 in 2020 and $1,480 in 2019, The Company does not have
any regulatory contribution requirements for 2020, however, the Company currently intends to make
voluntary contributions of approximately $1,700 in 2021. The actual amount of the contribution may be
different from this estimate.

In addition, the Company has a SERP, which provides an additional supplemental defined pension benefit
to a limited number of executives. The supplemental benefit is based on the participant's qualified plan
benefit without consideration to the regulatory limits on compensation and benefit payments applicable to
gualified plans, except that eligikle compensation is capped at $1 million.

The Company's liability to this plan was $2,448 and $1,968 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Pension cost is determined in the same manner as the defined benefit plan. Expense recognized for the
plan was $138 and $103 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2018, respectively.

Defined Contribution Plans—In addition to the defined benefit plans, the Company has a
qualified 401(k) and profit sharing plan for its exempt employees. The Company makes annual
contributions to the plan of six percent of each employee’s compensation, subject to limitation. All
Company contributions are subject to a vesting schedule based on the employee's years of service. For
the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, Company contributions totaled $747 and $689,
respectively.

Postretirernent Benefit Plans Other Than Pensions—The Company does not provide postretirement
employment benefits to its employees other than those described above, except certain executive officers
are covered by a post-retirement life insurance plan sponsored by the Parent Company. The Company
was allocated $183 and $183 for 2020 and 2019, respectively, for its annual share of the plan.
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8. INFORMATION CONCERNING PARENT, SUBSIDIARIES, AND AFFILIATES

Summary of Transactions—A summary of transactions between the Company, its parent, subsidiaries
and affiliates as of and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, are as follows:

The Company has an investment management agreement with the Parent Company wherein the
Company is charged a fee based on the total value of the securities managed. Total investment
management fees incurred were $5,880 and $5,736 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

The Company has a separate service agreement with the Parent Company to provide a wide variety of
services, resulting in allocated expense to the Company of $17,088 and $16,056 in 2020 and 2018,
respectively. The Parent Company agreement is a master service agreement with the Company and the
other insurance affiliates and was approved by the Department. The fee is based on the ratio of certain
expenses at the affiliate level to comparable Parent Company consolidated expenses, which is then
applied to the Parent Campany's total operating expenses for the prior year.

The Company is a party to a service agreement by and between Liberty Natiocnal, Family Heritage, Globe
Life, and United American. The agreement establishes that all parties may, from time to time, act to
furnish a particular service or services becoming a “Service Provider” or receive a particular service or
services as a “Service Beneficiary” and provides for allocation of salary expense and other costs of
providing such services to the appropriate Service Beneficiary. Allocated expense related to this
agreement for 2020 and 2019 was $34,002 and $29,044, respectively.

The Company has agreed to provide National Income, a subsidiary of the Company, certain legal,
actuarial, marketing and other services with respect to National Incame's life and accident and health
businesses. In 2020 and 2019, the Company charged a fee of $7,938 and $7,818, respectively, for these
services. The Company also services the agent halance receivables on behalf of another of its affiliates,
American Income Life Insurance Company Receivables Corp (AILRC). In 2020 and 2018, the Company
charged AILRC $1,779 and $1,688, respectively, for these services.

During 2020 and 2019, the Company sold agent balances totaling $410,680 and $366,617, respectively,
to its affiliate, AILRC. The agent balances were sold to AILRC at a discount and amortized through
investment expense, a component of investment income, evenly over the life of the agent balances.
Amortization expense of $17,958 and $16,164 was recorded in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Capital—The Company owned 19,169 shares of the Parent Company's 7.15% Cumulafive Preferred
Stock, Series A, and 20,000 shares of the Parent Company's 6.5% Cumuiative Preferred Stock, Series A,
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The carrying value of the stock was $39,169 as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019. The Company received cash dividends of $1,300 for the 6.5% Cumulative
Preferred Stock and $1,371 for the 7.15% Cumulative Preferred Stock during 2020 and 2019. The
Department imits the Company's carrying value of investment in affiliated preferred stock to 2% of prior
year total admitted assets. No amounts were required to be nonadmitted as of December 31, 2020 or
2019.

During 2012, the Company applied for and obtained approval fram the Department to issue surplus notes
in the aggregate of $50,000. The Company issued a $25,000 par value surplus note to the Parent
Company on December 31, 2012. The surplus note was issued with an interest rate of 5.25% and a
maturity date of December 31, 2042. The carrying value of the surplus note was $25,000, at
December 31, 2020 and 2019. Semi-annual interest payments are due in April and October. The surplus
note has the following repayment conditions and restrictions; 1) payments of principal and interest can
only be made from the issuer's available surplus when the amount of surplus over all liabilities is equal to
or greater than the surplus existing immediately after the issuance of the surplus note; and 2) payments
can only be made with the prior approval of the Indiana Insurance Commissioner.
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The surplus notes are direct, unsecured obligations of the Company. In the event of liquidation, the notes
are subordinate to holders of policy claims, other indebtedness, and other creditor claims, The surplus
notes were issued pursuant to rule 144A under the securities act of 1933. All proceeds were received in
cash. Interest expense accrued as of both December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $1,312 and $1,312,
respectively. Total interest paid since inception of the note is $10,226,

in 2017, the Parent Company sold the $25,000 surplus notes to Globe Life And Accident Insurance
Company, an affiliate. '

Affiliate Transactions for Current and Prior Years—In addition o the balances and transactions with
affiliates summarized in the section above, the Company also entered into a variety of reinsurance
transactions that have been disclosed in Note 4 and borrowing transactions with affiliates that are
described below:

The Company borrowed $20,000 at an interest rate of 3.25% on December 18, 2020 from Liberty
National. The borrowing has a scheduled maturity of on or before June 18, 2021, The Company incurred
interest expense of $23 on the borrowings.

The Company borrowed $55,413, $20,447, $15,000, $30,000, $10,000, $70,696, $25,857, $20,000,
$1,651, $15,696 and $25,000 at an interest rate of 0.00%, 0.00%, 3.25%, 3.25%, 3.25%, 0.00%, 0.00%,
3.25%, 0.00%, 3.25% and 0.00% on March 23, March 26, April 3, April 28, May 8, June 1, June 22,
August 24, September 11, November 30, and December 16, 2020 from the Parent Company, respectively.
The borrowings were repaid in full on March 23, 2020, March 26, 2020, July 21, 2020, September 11,
2020, September 11, 2020, November 30, 2020, December 17, 2020, February 4, 2021, September 11,
2020, December 21, 2020, and December 23, 2020, respectively. The Company incurred interest
expense of $797 on the borrowings.

American Income Marketing Services Inc., a subsidiary of the Company, borrowed $2,500, $2,500, and
$2,000 at an interest rate of 5.50%, 4.75%, and 3.25% from the Company on July 24, 2019, January 22,
2020, and July 22, 2020, respectively. The borrowings were repaid in full on January 22, 2020, July 22,
2020, and December 22, 2020, respectively.

Gicbe Life And Accident Insurance Company borrowed $10,000 at an interest rate of 4.75% from the
Company on February 12, 2020. The borrowings were repaid in full on March 2, 2020.

Liberty National borrowed $10,000 at an interest rate of 4.75% from the Company on February 12, 2020,
The borrowing was repaid in full on March 9, 2020.

National Income borrowed $11,5565 and $2,182 at an interest rate of 0.00% and 0.00% from the Company
on June 25 and July 16, 2020, respectively. The borrowings were repaid in full on June 25 and July 186,
2020, respectively.

The Parent Company borrowed $25,000 and $15,000 at an interest rate of 4.25% and 4.25% from the
Company on March 9 and March 13, 2020, respectively. The borrowings were repaid in full on March 23
and March 23, 2020, respectively.

United American borrowed $10,000, $5,000, $7,000, $5,000 and $10,000 at an interest rate of 5.25%,
4.75%, 4.75%, 4.75% and 3.25% from the Company on September 24, 2019, December 24, 2019,
February &, 2020, March 2, 2020, and March 31, 2020, respectively. The borrowings were repaid in full on
January 30, January 30, July 21, July 21, and August 17, 2020, respectively.
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Non Insurance Investments in Subsidiary, Controlled, and Affiliated Entities (SCA)—The following
tables list SCA for the year ended December 31, 2020:

Percentage
of SCA Gross Admitted Nonadmitted
SCA Entity Ownership Amount Amount Amount

{1} Balance Shest Value (Admitted and Nonadmitted} All SCAs (Except 8bi Entities)

a. SSAP No. 97 8a Entities

8a entity description

Total SSAP No. 97 8a Entities . XXX $ — % - § —

b. SSAP No, 97 8blii} Entities
8b(ii) entity description

Amerigan jncome Marketing Services .. . . 1.0 1,203 —_ 1,203
Total SSAP No. 97 8b(ii} Entities . o XXX 1,203 — 1,203

c. SSAP No. 97 8b(iii) Entities
8b(iii) entity description
Total SSAP No. 97 8bfiii) Entities = . XXX - — —

d. SSAP No. 97 8b(iv} Entities
8b(iv) entity description

Total SSAP No. 97 8b(iv) Enfities. .. ... . XXX e — —
e. SSAP No. 97 8b Entities (except 8b{i} entltles) (bHct+d) XXX 1,203 — 1,203
f. Aggregate Total (a + e) T T XXX 3 1,203 § — § 1,203
NAIC
Disallowed
Entities
NAIC Valuation
Type of Date of NAIC Response Method,
NAIC Filing Filing to Valuation Received Y/ Resubmission
SCA Entity v the NAIC Amount N Required Y/N Code*
(2) NAIC Filing Response
Information

a. SSAP No. 97 8a Entities
Ba entity description
Total SSAP No., 97 8a Entities....... ... HXX KXX $ R XXX XXX XXX

b. SSAP No. 97 8b(ii) Entities
Bh(ii) entity description

American Income Markehng
Services... o N/A — N/A N/A |

Total SSAP No 97 8b(u) Entities.. ... XXX XXX — HXX XXX XXX
c. SSAP No, 97 8b(iii) Enlities

Bh{iii} entity description

Total SSAP No. 97 8b(iii) Entities XXX XXX — XXX XXX XXX

d. SSAP No. 97 8b(iv) Entities
8b(iv) entity description

Total SSAP No. 97 8b(iv) Entities . XXX XXX — XXX XXX XXX
e. SSAP No. 97 Bb Entities {except

8b(i) entities) (b+c+d). . .. XXX XXX — XXX XXX XXX
f. Aggregate Total (a + e} . . XXX XXX 3 — XXX XXX XXX

* 51 - Sub-1, $2 - Sub-2 or RDF - Resubmissicn of Disallowed Filing
** | - iImmaterial or M - Material
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Guaranteed
Accumulated Reporting Entity's Obligation /
Reporting Enfity's  Share of Net Share of Equity, Commitment for
Share of Net income Including Negative  Financial Support Reported
Entity Income (L.oss) {Losses) Equity (Yes/No) Value
AlLO 1, LLC & (707) § (1.138) 8 (38) No $ 0

9. CAPITAL AND SURPLUS AND SHAREHOLDER’S DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS

The Company has 23,360,214 common shares authorized and 11,680,107 common shares issued
outstanding. All shares are Class A shares. The common stock of the Company is wholly-owned by the
Parent Company.

Dividends—The Company declared and paid $199,064 and $191,362 in dividends to the Parent
Company during the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. No extraordinary dividends
were paid in 2020 or 2019,

Statutory regulations in the State of Indiana limit the payment of dividends by stock life insurance
companies in any one year to an amount equal to the greater of statutory net gain from operations from
the previous year or 10% of surplus reported for the previous year. Dividends in excess of these
limitations are not available without special approval of the regulatory authorities. The maximum dividend
the Company can make without prior approval in 2021 is $193,932.

Surplus Notes—The Company had $25,000 in surplus notes outstanding at December 31, 2020 and
2019. Interest expense of $1,312 in both 2020 and 2019 related to these nofes is included in the
accompanying statutory-basis financial statements. Payments of principal and interest can only be made
from the Company's available surplus when the amount of surplus over all liabilities is double that of the
amount of principal and interest then being paid, Payments can only be made with the prior approval of
the Department. The note is a direct, unsecured obligation of the Company. In the event of liquidation, the
note is subordinate to holders of policy claims, other indebtedness and other creditor claims. The entire
amount of the note is held by the Company's affiliate, Globe Life and Accident and Insurance Company.

Unassigned Surplus—The portion of unassigned surplus increased or (reduced) by each item below is
as follows as of December 31:

2020 2019
Nonadmitted asset values $ {45319) $§ (40,088)
Asset valuation reserve {38,668} (40,447)
Net unrealized gains {losses)—net of tax (17,569) (12,546)

The 2020 and 2019 net unrealized loss as presented above differs from the amount disclosed in the
Company's annual statement within note 13.10. The difference is due to net unrealized foreign exchange
capital gain, net of tax of $37,019 and $30,604, respectively and less prior year's adjustment of tax on
repatriation of $416. The change in net unrealized foreign exchange capital gains is presented on the
Statutory-Basis Statement of Changes in Capital and Surplus.
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10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases—Future minimum rental commitments required under operating leases having remaining
noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year at December 31, 2020 were as follows:

Year Ending December 31,
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Total
Operating lease commitments. ... . § 644 § 596 $ 451 § 368 ¢ 12 3 2,072

Lease expense included in general expenses was $477 and $530 for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. The Company has the option to renew most of its leases at the end of the
lease term at the fair value for a period of five {o ten vears.

Unfunded Investment Commitments-—The Company has unfunded commitments to limited
partnerships and commercial mortgage loans. As of December 31, 2020, the Company committed $103
million to fund investments related to limited partnerships. Additionally, as of December 31, 2020, the
Company committed up to $85 million to purchase commercial mortgage loans.

Litigation—American Income and its subsidiary, in common with the insurance industry in general, are
subject to litigation, including putative class action litigation, alleged breaches of contract, torts, including
bad faith and fraud claims based on alleged wrongful or fraudulent acts of agents of American Income
and its subsidiary, employment discrimination, and miscellaneous other causes of action. Based upon
information presently available, and in light of legal and other factual defenses available to American
Income and its subsidiary, management dees not believe that it is reasonably possible that such litigation
will have a maierial adverse effect on American Income's financial condition, future operating results or
liquidity; however, assessing the evenfual outcome of litigation necessarily involves forward-locking
speculation as to judgments to be made by judges, juries and appellate courts in the future. This
bespeaks caution, particularly in states with reputations for high punitive damage verdicts. American
Income's management recognizes that large punitive damage awards bearing little or no relation to actual
damages continue to be awarded by juries in jurisdictions in which American Income and its subsidiary
have substantial business, creating the potential for unpredictable material adverse judgments in any
given punitive damage suit.

During 2020, the Company paid $2,904 to settle five claims related to extra contractual obligations or bad
faith claims stemming from lawsuits. During 2019, the Company paid $222 to settle one claim related to
extra contractual obligations or bad faith claims stemming from lawsuits,

On September 12, 2018, putative class action litigation was filed against American Income in California’s
Contra Costa County Superior Court (Joh v. American income Life Insurance Company, Case No.
C18-01863) (Joh Action). An amended complaint was filed on October 18, 2018. American Income
removed the case to the United States Disfrict Court for the Northern District of California (Case No. 3:18-
¢cv-08364-TSH). A second amended complaint was filed on May 20, 2019. The plaintiffs, former insurance
sales agents of American Income, sued on behalf of all current and former trainees and sales agents who
sold insurance for American Income in the State of California for the four years prior to the filing of the
complaint. The second amended complaint alleged that such individuals were employees and asserted
claims under the California Labor Code, California Business and Professions Code, and California Private
Attorney General Act. The complaint sought compensatory damages, penalties and attorney fees on
claims for failure to pay wages/commissions, failure to appropriately pay agents at termination, failure to
provide itemized wage statements, failure to reimburse expenses, misclassification and unfair business
practices.

On Ociober 18, 2018, putative class action litigation was filed against Torchmark Corporation and
American Income in California’s Los Angeles County Superior Court {Golz v. American Income Life
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Insurance Company, et al., Case No. 185TCV01354) (Golz Action). American Income removed the case
to the United States District Court for the Central District of California (Case No. 2:18-¢cv-09879 R (SSx)).
An amended complaint was filed on February 5, 2019. On February 6, 2019, Torchmark Corporation was
dismissed without prejudice and the case proceeded with respect to American Income. On April 2, 2019,
the District Court granted American Income’s motion to dismiss four of the five causes of action asserted.
The amended complaint’s remaining claim alleged that plaintiff, as an American Income insurance agent
trainee in California, was an employee who should have been compensated accordingly. The plaintiff
sought to represent a class of individuals in California who trained to contract as American Income agents
and who subsequently worked as contracted agents. The class period was alleged to begin four years
prior to the complaint's filing. The complaint sought restitution under the California Business and
Professions Code for alleged unfair business practices such as failure to pay minimum wage and
overtime, failure to provide meal and rest breaks, and failure to reimburse business expenses,

On December 14, 2018, putative class action litigation was filed against American Inceme in United
States District Court for the Northern District of Califomia {(Hamilton v. American Income Life Insurance
Company, Case No. 4:18-cv-7535-KAW} (Hamilton Action). An amended complaint was filed on January
23, 2019. The plaintiffs, former insurance sales agents of American Income, sued on behalf of all current
and former trainees and sales agents who sold insurance for American Income in the State of California
for the last four years prior to the filing of the complaint. The lawsuit alleged that putative class members
were employees and asseried claims under the California Labor Code, California Business and
Professions Code, and California Private Attorney General Act. The complaint sought compensatory
damages, penaities and attorney fees on claims for failure to pay minimum wage and overtime, failure to
provide meal and rest breaks, failure to appropriately pay agents at termination, failure to provide itemized
wage statements, failure to reimburse expenses, misclassification and unfair business practices.

With respect to the related cases above, on August 6, 2020, the plaintiffs in the Joh and Hamilton Actions
jointly moved for preliminary approval of a settlement of all class and representative claims, which broadly
covers “all individuals who trained to become and/or worked as sales agents in California for Defendant
during the last four years prior to the filing of the original Complaint in Joh and whose training andfor work
began before August 16, 2019.” Plaintiffs’ preliminary motion anticipated that the proposed setilement
would resolve all claims in the Joh and Hamilton Actions, and in doing so, encompass pending claims
asserted in the Golz Action for the settlement period. On August 21, 2020, the Northern District of
California granted the Motion for Preliminary Approval of Class Action Settiement and scheduled a
hearing for final approval of the settlement. On January 7, 2021, plaintif’s motion for final settlement
approval was granted and a final judgment was entered on the same day, thereby resclving the Joh
Action. The Hamilton Action was subsequently dismissed with prejudice on March 17, 2021, On April 1,
2021, the Golz Action was dismissed with prejudice as to plaintiff's individual claims and without prejudice
as to the claims of putative class members.

On August &, 2020, putative class and collective action litigation was filed against American Income and
National Income Life Insurance Company (“National Income”) in United States District Court for the
Central District of California (Natalie Bell, Gisele Mobley, Ashly Rai, and John Turner v. American Income
Life Insurance Company and National Income Life Insurance Company, Case No, 2:20-cv-07046). On
December 18, 2020, the plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed Mr. Turner's claims and all claims against
defendant National Income. Following the dismissal, the complaint alleges that insurance agent trainees
should have been classified as employees, and after contracting should have been classified as
employees instead of independent contractors. Plaintiff Bell is a former California trainee and plaintiff Rai
is a former California agent. They assert claims under California law on behaif of a putative California
class for the four years prior to February 13, 2020 through case conclusion. They make claims under (a)
the California L.abor Code for alleged meal and rest break violations, overtime, minimum wage, alleged
failure to pay wages at the time of termination, expense reimbursement, and alleged failure to provide
accurate wage statements; and (b) the California Business and Professions Code for alleged unfair
business practices. They also seek liquidated damages, penalties and attorney's fees under California
law. Plaintiff Mobley is a former Florida agent who asserts a claim under Florida law on behalf of a
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putative Florida class for the five years prior to February 13, 2020 through case conclusion. She makes a
claim under the Florida General Labor Regulations, including the Florida Minimum Wage Act, for alleged
failure to pay all wages owed. The plaintiffs also assert a national collective action on behalf of all
“similarly situated” individuals for minimum wage, overtime, liquidated damages, penalties, an accounting
and attorney's fees and costs under the Fair Labor Standards Act for the three years prior to February 13,
2020 through case conclusion, American Income responded to the complaint with a motion to compel the
named plaintiffs to arbitrate thelr individual claims and other procedural challenges. On April 6, 2021, the
court granted American tncome's motion to compel arbitration as to plaintiffs Mobley and Rai, and denied
the motion without prejudice as to plaintiff Bell. American Income anticipates renewing its motion to
compel arbitration as to Bell.

With respect to the aforementioned litigation, at this time, management believes that the possibility of a
material jJudgment adverse to the Company is remote.

Unclaimed Property Audits—The Globe Life Inc. insurance subsidiaries are undergoing unclaimed
property audits by three separate audit firms covering all but four states. These audits require the
subsidiaries to provide the auditors with certain policy data dating back to 1992, which data will be
checked against the Social Security Death Master File to determine whether any unclaimed insurance
benefits are due. The subsidiaries are currently meeting the deadlines to provide information to the
outside audit firms. In a related matter, along with approximately 65 other insurers (including the
Company's affiliates), the Company is defending a lawsuit brought by the Treasurer of West Virginia,
which lawsuit alleges that the Company failed to identify unclaimed life insurance proceeds and make
payments to the Treasurer's Office. The Treasurer agreed to stay the action during the pendency of the
Parent Company subsidiaries’ on-going unclaimed property audits in West Virginia. No estimate of range
can be made at this time for loss contingencies related to possible administrative amounts or penalties
that could be payable to the states for the escheatment of abandoned property.
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11. ELECTRONIC DATA PROCESSING EQUIPMENT

Electronic data processing equipment (EDP) and operating and non-operating software at December 31,
2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

2020 2019
Electronic data processing equipment—net . . $ 2403 § 1,196
System software—net. ... ... . . e 12,259 12,418
Balance—net ... . .. . . B PPN 14,6862 13,615
Total nonadmitted . . U USRS U, 12,259 12,419
Totaladmitted. .. ... .. ... .. : .5 2,403 § 1,196

Depreciation expense related to EDP and software totaled $4,528 and $3,738, for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The Company recorded total depreciation of $4,724 and
$3,953, in 2020 and 2019, respectively. Total accumulated depreciation for 2020 and 2019 was $2,438
and $1,918, respectively.

12. FOREIGN EXCHANGE ADJUSTMENT

The Company is licensed to sell insurance in Canada and New Zealand. Invested assets held in Canada
and New Zealand were $507,235 and $410,464 (U.S. dollars) at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. The net foreign exchange adjustment resulting from the translation of assets denominated in
foreign currencies was approximately $37,019 and $30,604, at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. The change in this foreign exchange adjustment, net of tax, of $6,415 and $938 for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, is included in the accompanying statutory-basis
statements of changes in capital and surplus.

13. PARTICIPATING POLICIES

The Company does not currently write any participating business. The Company accounis for its
policyholder dividends on an accrual basis consistent with SSAP No. 51, Life Contracits and SSAP No. 54,
individual and Group Accident and Health Contracts. The Company incurred dividends in the amount of
$10 and $18 to life and annuity policyholders in 2020 and 2019, respectively, and did not allocate any
additional income to such policyholders.
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14. RECONCILIATION TO THE ANNUAL STATEMENT

The accompanying 2020 and 2019 statutory-basis financial statements differ from the amounts shown in
the Company's statutory annual statement for 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Following is a reconciliation of account balances as reported to state regulatory authorities to amounts
reported herein;

Statements of Operations 2020
Increase in aggregate reserves for life and accident

and health contracts as reported in the Company’s annual statement § 221,097
Adjustment to reclassify foreign exchange {10,605)

Increase in aggregate reserves for future policy benefits as reported
in the accompanying statutory-basis staternents of aperations $ 210,492

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment as reported in the Company's
annual statement $ {10,605)
Adjustment to reclassify foreign exchange 10,605

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment as reported in the

accompanying statutory-basis statements of operations $ -
Statements of Operations 2019
Increase in aggregate reserves for life and accident

and health contracts as reported in the Company's annual statement $ 199,273
Adjustment to reclassify foreign exchange {15,329)

Increase in aggregate reserves for future policy benefits as reported
in the accompanying statutory-basis statements of operations $ 183,944

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment as reported in the Company's
annual statement $ {15,329)
Adjustment to reclassify foreign exchange 15,329

Foreign Currency Translation Adjiustment as reported in the
accompanying statutory-basis statements of operations 3 —

Fkkkhd
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1. The Company's total admitted assets are $4,674,916.

2. Ten largest exposures to a single issue/borrowerfinvestment.

Percentage

of Total

Description of Admitted

Issuer Exposure Amount  Assets
201 Telus COMP. ..o Bond $ 69,439 1.5%
2.02 Globe Life Inc. (Affiliate). . BRI Preferred Stock  § 39,169 08%
2.03 National Income Life Insurance Company (Afiiliate). ... . Common Stock $ 39,120 0.8 %
2.04 Nuirien LTD . R . Bond $ 36,913 0.8 %
2.05 BellCanada. ... ... Bond $ 35,897 0.8 %
2.06 Vale Overseas Limited. . ... ... ... ... Bond $ 33,281 0.7 %
2.07 CanadianPacificRRCo. ... ... Bond $ 33,150 0.7 %
2.08 PIMCO Commercial Real Estate Debt Fund, LP.... .. .. Other Invested Asset $ 30,469 0.7 %
2.08 Johnson Controls intl PI.. S Bond $ 29,830 0.6 %
2,10 Burlington North SantaFe. ... ... ... .. Bond $ 27,094 0.6 %

3. Amounts and percentages of the Company's total admitied assets held in bonds and preferred stock by NAIC

designation.
Preferred

Bonds Amount Percentage Stock Amount Percentage

3.01 NAIC-1 ... ... . $1335153 28.6 % PIRP-1... § — — %
3.02 NAIC-2 R ... $2/164,219 463 % PIRP-2.... § 39,169 0.8 %
3.03 NAIC-3 . ... . . ..............% 201250 43%P/RP-3.. % — — %
3.04 NAICH L .......% 186,849 04 %PIRP-4... % - — %
3.05 NAIC-5 .. .. ... . ... $ — — % PIRP-5... § — — %
3.06 NAIC-6 . . i § 879 — % P/IRP-6.... § -_ — %
{Continued)
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4. Assets held in foreign investments:
4,01 Are assets held in foreign investments less than 2.5% of the

reporting entity's total admitted assets? o B Yes|[ ] No[X]
4.02 Total admitted assets held in foreign investments.. . ... . . 3 440,448 9.4 %
4.03 Foreign-currency-denominated investments. R $ 93,253 20%
4.04 Insurance liabilities denominated in that same foreign currency, .. . $ 42,288 0.9 %

5. Aggregate foreign investment exposure categorized by NAIC sovereign designation:

5.01 Countries designated NAIC~1.. . . SURT 389,811 8.3 %
5.02 Countries designated NAIC-2 .. . i B 50,637 1.1 %
5.03 Countries designated NAIC~3 or below . . ... 8 — — %

6. Largest foreign investment exposures by country, categorized by the country's NAIC sovereign designation:
Countries designated NAIC—1:

6.01 Country 1: New Zealand 3 93,253 20%
6.02 Country 2: Great Britain............ . 3 56,022 12 %
Countries designated NAIC-2:
6.03  Couniry 1: Mexico . - % 44,823 1.0 %
6.04  Country 2: Panama. .. ... . 5 5,814 0.1 %
Countries designated NAIC-3 ar below:
6.05 Country 1. ... ... ... . . _ e B — — %
B.06  Country 2:. ... $ — — %
7. Aggregate unhedged foreign currency exposure. .. ... ... . % 93,253 20%

8. Aggregate unhedged fareign currency exposure categorized by NAIC sovereign designation:

8.01 Countries designated NAIC~1..... .. .. .. . . e B 93,253 20%
8.02 Countries designated NAIC-2. . . B — — %
8.03 Countries designated NAIC~3 or below o . . % _— %

(Continued})
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9. Llargest unhedged foreign currency exposures by country, categorized by the country's NAIC sovereign

designation:
Countries designated NAIC-1:
.01  Country 1: New Zealand : i B 93,253 20%
9.02  Country 2 e B — — %

Countries designated NAIC-2:
9.03 Country1:......... ... ... . L e B s — %
Q.04  Counlry 20 . . . $ — — %

Countries designated NAIC-3 or below:
9.05 Counfry 1o R . $ — — %
9.06 Country 2: TSP PP S P PP . $ —_ — %

10. Ten largest non-sovereign (i.e. non-governmental) foreign issues:

NAIC
Issuer Designation Amount Percentage
10.01 Vale Overseas Limited ................. ... TR 2.CFE $ 33,281 0.7 %
10.02 Johnson Controls Intl PIL... B TR PRSP 2BFE $ 29,930 0.6 %
10.03 Grupo Bimboe SABDECV. ... ... .. ... .. . e 2BFE $ 21,368 0.5 %
10.04 Cooperatieve Rabobank UA SO US PRV R P 1.DFE $ 20,371 0.4 %
10.05 Koninklijke Philips NV 2.AFE $ 16,021 0.3 %
10,06 AXASA 2AFE $ 16,012 0.3 %
10.07 Tyco Electronics Group.... .. .. ... 2AFE $ 15,978 0.3 %
10.08 United Wilities PLC.... ... 2AFE $ 15,328 0.3 %
10.09 Electricite DeFrance SA. ... ... 2,AFE $ 15,099 0.3 %
10.10 LaFarge SA... .. ... PR RO UPUOUO 2.BFE $ 10,903 0.2 %

11. Amounts and percentages of the reporting entity's total admitted assets held in Canadian investments and
unhedged Canadian currency exposure:

i1.01 Are assets held in Canadian investments less than 2.5%

of the reporting entity's total admitted assets? ... ... .. ... Yes|[ ] No[X]
11.02 Total admitted assets held in Canadian investments ... .................... & 582,124 12.5 %
41.03 Canadian-currency-denominated investments... ... ... - § 373,955 8.0 %
41.04 Canadian-denominated insurance liabilities...... ... e $ 397,487 8.5 %
11.05 Unhedged Canadian currency exposure.. ........................ -5 373,955 8.0 %

12. Report aggregate amounts and percentages of the reporting entity's total admitted assets held in investments
with contractual sales restrictions:

12.01 Are assets held in investments with contractual sales restrictions
less than 2.5% of the reporting entity's total admitted assets? ... .. ... Yes [ X] Nol]
(Continued)
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13. Amounts and percentages of admitied assets held in the ten largest equity interests:
13.01 Are assets held In equity interest less than 2,5% of the
reporting entities total admitted assets? ... .. . . .. . Yes [ X] Nol ]

14. Amounts and percentages of the reporting entity's total admitted assets held in nonaffiliated, privately placed
equities:
14.01 Are assets held in nonaffiliated, privately placed equities less than
2.5% of the reporting entity's total admitted assets? e Yes [ X] Nol[ ]

Ten largest fund managers:

Fund Manager Total Invested Diversified Nondiversified

14.06 Wells Fargo (meney market)
14.07  Northern Trust {(money market). .
14.08

14.09

$ 12,900
$
$
$
14.10 $ —_
¥
]
5
$
$

3.224

12,900
3,224

14.11
14.12
14.13
14.14
14.15

€ R H 6 7 B £ 8 A
€A B O ) 2 4 B B B

15. Amounts and percentages of the reporting entity’s total admitted assets held in general partnership interests:
15.01  Are assets held in general partnership interests less than
2.5% of the reporting entity's total admitted assets? ... ... . ... .. . Yes [X] No [ ]

16. Amounts and percentages of the reporting entity's total admitted assets held in mortgage loans:
16.01  Are mortgage loans reported in Schedule B less than
2.5% of the reporting entity's total admitted assets?. e Yes [ X] No| ]

If response to 16.01 above is yes, responses are not required for the remainder of interrogatory 16 and
interrogatory 17.

18. Amounts and percentages of the reporting entity's total admitted assets held in each of the five largest
investments in real estate.

18.01 Are assets held in real estate reported in less than 2.5% of the
reporting entity's total admitted assets? ... ... . . Yes [ X] Nol[ ]

19. Report aggregate amounts and percentages of the reporting entity's total admitted assets held in investments
held in mezzanine real estate loans.

19.01  Are assets held in investments held in mezzanine real estate less
than 2.5% of the reporting entity's total admitted assets? Yes[X] No[ ]

Interrogatories 20-23 are not applicable to the Company.
(Concluded)
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Admitted
Assets as
Gross Reported in
Investment the Annual
INVESTMENT CATEGORIES Holdings* Statement
BONDS:
ULS. QOVEIMMENES .. .o o e 3 3,064 $ 3,064
All other governments... USROS B TP 52,913 52,913
U.S. states, territories and possessions, etc. guaranteed . 2,833 2,833
U.S. political subdivisions of states, territories and possessions
guaranteed.. ... B U U VPP URIE PPN 89,001 89,001
U.8. special revenue and speaal assessment obllgat:ons etc,
non-guaranteed ... ... . o 208,362 208,362
Industrial and miscellaneous.. ... ... ... ... U TR 3,235,578 3,235,578
Hybrid securities........................... L SRR 126,599 126,599
PREFERRED STOCKS:
Parent, subsidiaries and affiliates ... . . o . RSO TTRUUT 38,169 39,169
COMMON STOCKS:
Industrial and miscellaneous Other (Unaffiliated) J 1,138 1,138
Parent, subsidiaries and affiliates Other ... . ... .. .. ... 40,332 39,129
MORTGAGE LOANS:
Commercial mortgages.. ... OSSP PSP 28,770 29,770
REAL ESTATE:
Properties occupied by company..... e RPN 2,188 2,189
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS:
Cash. ... . . B O U OO TP PP RUU PP 16,966 16,966
Cash equivalents.. ... .. TR S U USSP RS 16,124 16,124
Short-term investments. . .. — —
Contractloans.................................. . AU 227,233 227,233
Other invested assets. .. O T ST ST DS P OO P PP PR P URVITN 214,171 214,171
TOTAL INVESTED ASSETS. .. ... . ... . o . $ 4305452 $ 4,304,249

* Gross investment holdings as valued in compliance with NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual.
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AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF REINSURANCE RISKS

AS OF PECEMBER 31, 2020

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Reinsurance Credit

1.

Reinsurance contracts subject to Appendix A-791, Life and Health Reinsurance Agreements of the
MNAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual:

We have entered into, renewed or amended no reinsurance contracts on or after January 1, 1996,
which include risk [imiting features, as described in SSAP No. 81R, Life, Deposit-Type and Accident
and Health Reinsurance (SSAP No. 61R). Deposit accounting, as described in SSAP No. 81R was
not applied for any reinsurance contracts, which include risk limiting features.

Reinsurance contracts NOT subject to Appendix A-791, Life and Health Reinsurance Agreements of
the NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual:

We have applied relnsurance accounting, as described in SSAP No. 81R, to no reinsurance contract
entered into, renewed or amended on or after January 1, 1996, which include risk limiting features, as
described in SSAP No. 61R because we have no such reinsurance contracts. Thus, there are no
related or applicable reinsurance reserve credits, as described in SSAP No. 61R.

Paymenits to reinsurers (excluding reinsurance contracts with a federal or state facility)

We have not entered into, renewed or amended reinsurance contracts on or after January 1, 1996,
which contain provisions which allow (1} the reporting of losses or settlements with the reinsurer to
occur less frequently than quarterly or (2) payments due from the reinsurer to not be made in cash
within ninety days of the settlement date unless there is no activity during the period.

We have not entered into, renewed or amended reinsurance contracts on or after January 1, 1988,
which contain a payment schedule, accumulating retentions from multiple years or any features
inherently designed to delay timing of the reimbursement to the ceding entity.

Reinsurance contracts NOT subject to Appendix A-791, Life and Health Reinsurance Agreements of
the NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual and NOT yearly-renewable term that meet
the risk transfer requirements under SSAP No. 61R:

We have not reflected reinsurance reserve for any reinsurance contracts entered into, renewed or
amended on or after January 1, 1996 for the following:

a. Assumption Reinsurance - for which there are no such reinsurance contracts;

b. Non-proportional reinsurance, which does not result in significant surplus relief - for which there
are no such reinsurance contracts,

62




AMERICAN INCOME LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

Supplemental Schedules
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
Dollar amounts in thousands

Reinsurance contracts NOT subject to Appendix A-791, Life and Health Reinsurance Agreements of
the NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual and NOT yearly-renewable term, under any
reinsurance contract (or multiple contracts with the same reinsurer or its affiliates) during the period
covered by the financial statement:

We have no reinsurance contracts entered into, renewed or amended on or after January 1, 1996
which are accounted as reinsurance under SSAP and as a deposit under GAAP, nor any which are
accounted as reinsurance under GAAP and as a deposit under SSAP.

If affirmative disclosure is required for (5) above, explain why the contract(s) is treated differently for
GAAP and SSAP:

We have no instances of such contracts as stated above.
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{Dollar amounts in thousands)

INVESTMENT INCOME EARNED:
U.S. government bonds
Other bonds - unaffiliated.........
Preferred stock - affiliated.
Common stock - unaffiliated.... ... ...
Common stock - affiliated
Mortgage loans... .. . TR
Contract loans.. . .
Cash and cash equivalents. . .
Other invested assets... .
Aggregate write-ins for investment income.. .. .

GROSS INVESTMENT INCOME ..

MORTGAGE LOANS - BOOK VALUE
Commercial mortgages.. .

MORTGAGE LOANS BY STANDING - BOOK VALUE

Good standing. ....... -
Good standing with restructured terms.. ...
Foreclosure in process....... ...,

REAL ESTATE OWNED - book value less encumbrances
OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS - statement value..
BONDS AND STOCK OF PARENT, SUBSIDIARY, AND
AFFILIATES — book value:
Preferred stock.

Common stock...
TOTAL
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57
183,478
2,671
10
13,787
2,056
17,475
1,011
6,461

(115)

226,841

29,770

21,870
4,278
3,622

2,199

214,171

39,169
40,332
79,501

{Continued)
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BONDS AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS BY NAIC DESIGNATION AND MATURITY
Bonds and short-term investments by maturity - statement value:

Due within one year or less. . C PSP PR RPN 3 10,363
Over 1 yearthroughSyears ... ... ... e e . 227,959
Over 5 years through 10 years . T U O PP RS 475,625
Over 10 years through 20 years. . . _ USRS 1,262,073
Over 20 years.. . S . S S P SRUU TP RTPPUI 1,742,330
Total by maturity. ... ... ... .. . e ... % 3,718,350

Bonds and short-term investments by NAIC designation - statement value:
MNAIC T ... B 1,335,153
NAIC 2 : U ST TSSO TP OU PP 2,164,219
NAIC3. . O PRUP R JE TP 201,250
NAIC4 .. . . e BT RPP o : . 16,849
Total by NAIC designation . 8§ 3,718,350
TOTAL BONDS AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS PUBLICLY TRADED $§ 3,168,512
TOTAL BONDS AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS PRIVATELY PLACED . .. $ 549,838
PREFERRED STOCK - statement value L 8 38169
COMMON STOCK - market value. $ 41,470
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS. 3 —
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 8 33,090
(Continued)
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LIFE INSURANCE IN FORCE:
Ordinary.

Group life

AMOUNT OF ACCIDENTAL DEATH INSURANCE IN FORCE
UNDER ORDINARY POLICIES.

LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES WITH DISABILITY PROVISIONS IN FORCE:
Crdinary.. .

Group. ..o R PR

SUPPLEMENTARY CONTRACTS IN FORCE:
Ordinary - involving life contingencies income payable

ANNUITIES - ordinary:
Deferred - fully paid account balance .. .

Deferred - not fully paid account balance

ACCIDENT AND HEALTH INSURANCE - premiums in force:
Crdinary.

Group..

DEPGOSIT FUNDS AND DIVIDEND ACCUMULATIONS:
Deposit funds - account balance. ... .

Dividend accumulations - account balance.

CLAIM PAYMENTS 2020:
Group accident and health:
2020...

2019........
2018. ..

2017 and prior. ..

Other accident and health:
2020 .

2019,
2018.
2017 and prior ... ...
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“

$ 45,196,197

$ 249,838

. $ 72952996
§ 23,445564
.5 11.783
5 12

3 3412

$ 223,179

3 97,787
5,707

-3 86,584
8 1,142
2,789

1,201

159

127

3 9,813

3 5,669

. 8 981
3 1,094
{Concluded)
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Bravies financial and Actuarial Limited

27 April 2021

To: The Directors
American Income Life Insurance Company

From: Peter Davies
Consulting Actuary
Re: American Income Life Insurance Company - New

Zealand Branch: Report as at 31 December 2020 under
Sections 77 and 78 of the Insurance (Prudential
Supervision) Act 2010

You have asked me to prepare this report in temms of the above sections of the Act,
and I would like to comment further as follows:

1. I have reviewed the actuarial information included in the audited accounts for
American Income Life Insurance Company — New Zealand Branch as at 31%
December 2020. “Actuarial information™ includes the following:

- policy liabilities;

- solvency calculations in terms of the RBNZ Solvency Standard;

- balance sheet and other information allowed for in the calculation of
the company’s solvency position; and

- disclosures regarding the methodology and assumptions used for
calculating policy liabilities, and other disclosures.

2. No limitations have been placed on my work.

Level 1, Building 1, 61 Constellatien Drive, Mairangi Bay, Auckland 0652 Telephone (09) 489-3551  ¢-mail: pdavies@@actuary.conz
P.O. Box 35-258, Browns Bay, Auckland 0753 home page: www.actuary.co.nz



3. I am independent with respect to American Income Life Insurance Company
as defined under professional standard ISA (NZ) 620 of the External
Reporting Board.

4. I have been provided with all information that I have requested in order to

carry out this review.

5. In my view the actuarial information contained in the financial statements has
been appropriately included, and the actuarial information used in the
preparation of the financial statements has been appropriately used.

6. During 2013, the Company set up a Statutory Fund in terms of the Insurance
(Prudential Supervision) Act. It also established a Custodial account within
the Statutory Fund, under a local trustee structure, holding investment assets
for the preferential benefit of New Zealand policyholders. The assets of the
Custodial account have to be sufficient to meet the RBNZ’s solvency
requirements in respect of New Zealand policyholders.

The Branch’s solvency positions under the RBNZ Standard for Life Insurers
as at 31st December were as follows:

December 2019 December 2020
Total Statutory Total Statutory
Custadial Fund Other Fund Custedfal Fund Other Fund
Actual Solvency Capital 72,350,441 17,262,256 89,612,697 106,138,191 22,825,693 128,967,884
Minimm Solvency Capital 33,906,847 7857.110 41163957 28794358 6,226,504 35,020,862
Solvency Margin 38,443,594 9,405,146 47,848,740 77,343,833 16,603,182 93,947,022
* |Solveney Ratio 213.4% 219.7% 214.6% 368.6% 366.7% 368.3%

Assuming the Branch is able to achieve its business plans, the Branch is
expected to meet the RBNZ solvency requirement at all times over the next
four years.

Level 1, Building 1, 61 Constellation Drive, Mairangi Bay, Auckland 0652 Telephone (09) 489-3551  e-mail: pdavies@actuary.co.nz
PO, Box 35-258, Browns Bay, Auckland 0753 home page: www,actuary.co.nz




1 would be very happy to answer any queries concerning this report.

Yours sincerely

—

Peter Davies B.Bus.Sc,, FIA, FNZSA
Appointed Actuary

Level |, Building 1, 61 Constellation Drive, Mairangi Bay, Auckland 0652 Telephone (0%9) 489-3551  ¢-mail: pdavics@aciuary.co.nz
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27" April 2021

To: The Directors
American Income Life Insurance Company

From: Peter Davies
Consulting Actuary
Re: American Income Life Insurance Company: Report as at

31 December 2020 under Sections 77 and 78 of the
Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010

You have asked me to prepare this report in terms of the above sections of the Act,
and I would like to comment further as follows:

1. The American Income Life Insurance Company is a USA-based company
registered in the State of Indiana.

The Company operates a branch in New Zealand, for which I am the
Appointed Actuary.

[ have provided a separate Section 78 report in respect of the branch.
2. The Company is required to lodge its own accounts with the New Zealand

Companies Office, and these accounts are required to be accompanied by a
Section 78 report.

Level 1, Building 1, 61 Constetation Drive, Mairangi Bay, Auckland 0652 Telephone (09) 489-3551  e-mail: pdavies@actuary.co.nz
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3. I note that the company’s actuarial valuation has been carried out by Ms.
Yongjing Lin, Appointed Actuary, and a Fellow of the Society of Actuaries
and a Member of the American Academy of Actuaries.

1 have been provided with a set of the Company’s accounts, and with
Ms. Lin’s actuarial memorandum in relation to his wvaluation as at 319
December 2020.

I note that the Company’s accounts include the following information (2019
figures shown in brackets): ’

Statutory Balance sheet Capital: 18$338,854,599 ($347,285,253)
NAIC RBC* Capital calculation: US$379,480,364 ($389,355,991)
Risk Based capital Requirement: US$ 60,646,991 ($ 56,653,234)

Solvency coverage ratio: 626% (687%)

* National Association of Insurance Commissioners Risk Based Capital

4, I have reviewed the actuarial information included in the audited accounts for
American Income Life Insurance Company as at 31 December 2020.
“Actuarial information” includes the following:

- policy liabilities;

- balance sheet and other information alowed for in the calculation of
the company’s solvency position; and

- disclosures regarding the methodology and assumptions used for
calculating policy liabilities, and other disclosures.

5. No Limitations have been placed on my work.

6. 1 am independent with respect to American Income Life Insurance Company
as defined under professional standard ISA (NZ) 620 of the Extemal
Reporting Board.

7. 1 have been provided with all information that I have requested in order to

carry out this review.

Level 1, Building 1, 61 Constellation Drive, Mairangi Bay, Auckland 0652 Telephone (019} 489-3551  e-mail; pdavies@aciuary.co.nz
Q. Box 35-258, Browns Bay, Auckland 0753 home page: www.actuary.conz




8. In my view the actuarial information contained in the financial statements has
been appropriately included, and the actuarial information uwsed in the
preparation of the financial statements has been appropriately used.

0. In 2013, the Company established a Statutory Fund in New Zealand in terms
of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act, and set up a Custodial account
within this Fund, under a local trustee arrangement, holding investment assets
for the preferential benefit of New Zealand policyholders.

10.  Technically, the Company’s license requires the Company itself to
demonstrate its solvency in terms of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision)
Act 2010. This calculation has not been carried out, although clearly the
Company is in a strong financial position as assessed by the regulators in the
USA.

I would anticipate however that the New Zealand regunlators will still maintain
an ongoing active interest in the financial position of the Company, as
assessed by the Insurance Commissioner of Indiana,

I would be very happy to answer any queries concerning this report.

Yours sincerely

the
-

Peter Davies B.Bus.Sc., FIA, FNZSA
Appointed Actuary
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